
1  

annual     report 2015
racional engenharia



in this year’s annual report, 
racional engenharia’s board 
presents the company’s  
main activities, the challenges  
it faced and the strategies it 
adopted in 2015 for  
the creation of value  
in the economic, social  
and environmental spheres  
in the long run.
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this annual report contains key 
information on racional engenharia’s 
operational and economic-financial 
performance during the 2015 fiscal year.  
it features the year’s highlight  
events, as well as goals and results,  
in order to provide transparency to  
the Company’s management. 

geared to the Company’s various 
stakeholders — clients, employees, 
suppliers and other stakeholders —  
the report is not simply an account  
of its activities, but a detailed report  
of the board on specific challenges  
and strategies to create value for  
the Company in the economic,  
social and environmental realms  
in the long run.

the information presented here was 
collected through interviews with  
key racional egenharia executives.  
the content also includes disclosures 
made by the Company throughout  
the year. furthermore, the financial 
statements in this report are audited  
by kpmg.

With regard to the reporting framework, 
racional engenharia follows 
recommendations set forth by the  
brazilian association of listed  
Companies (abrasca), which awards  
the best annual reports issued by  
publicly and privately held companies,  
as well as reports prepared by civil  
society organizations.

this annual report and its previous 
editions are available online from  
racional engenharia’s website  
(www.racional.com). for queries, 
suggestions and comments, please 
contact us on www.racional.com  
(talk to us).

enjoy the reading!



message  
     from the ceo
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in 2015, our business was faced 
with a profound institutional crisis in brazil. 
it was a difficult time for us as it shook 
people’s confidence in the country’s 
economy and politics and its leaders. 
unfortunately it is a situation that has 
extended to 2016 and so far nobody 
knows how long it will last. 

 despite the adverse scenario, our 
equivalent revenues reached brl 843 
million last year, below the brl 1 billion  
that we anticipated. this result was due  
to the postponement of signed contracts. 
despite this drop in our revenues,  
the good news is that we managed to 
maintain our liquidity and low debt. 
furthermore, the forecasts previously  
set in our business plan were fully 
confirmed in the period and profitability 
and cash generation exceeded our 
expectations. this result, therefore, does 
not reflect a decrease. our revenues  
did not grow in 2015, but we kept the 
same growth pace of 2014 and maintained 
our scalability even through the crisis.

We acted proactively to respond to the 
circumstances and understand the changes 
that occur within the business environment. 
Companies like racional engenharia, 
whose financial health is sound, are 
challenged to prepare for a new structural 
dynamics in brazil’s civil construction 
industry. business in the brazilian market  
is directly influenced by investor confidence 
and by interest rate levels, and these 
directly impact capital cost.

during 2015 we made steady strides 
towards reviewing our strategy,  
structure and processes to allow us  
to continue being a major player in  
the brazilian construction industry.  
one of the challenges that we envisaged 
in the short run was the recovery of  
our proposed pipeline. in our project 
portfolio, the two segments that stood  
out in recent years were corporate 
buildings and shopping malls. since both 
segments have been affected by the 
current economic downturn, we decided  
to focus our efforts on new market  
niches and strengthen our presence  
in other niches that we had worked  
in before. as a result, we began to  
explore the infrastructure and concessions 
market, more specifically the airport  
and logistics segment. We were awarded  
a contract for the construction of a new 
passenger terminal at the tancredo neves 
international airport (Confins) in the city  
of belo horizonte, minas gerais state.

promoting the recovery of our business  
mix also requires the continuous 
readaptation of our ability to be competitive 
in the markets in which we began  
to operate.

racional engenharia has always been 
committed to continuous improvement 
processes. We have a particular concern  
to ensure that we do our best. so we spare 
no efforts to prepare the Company for  
a new future. as we are deeply committed 
to the principles of respect and trust,  
and the values that have always guided  
our business, we regularly review and  
adjust our processes, structure and  
people training. to us it is very important 
to create tangible deliverables for our 
clients. therefore, in 2015 we began  
to adopt work routines and indicators 
which can make deliveries increasingly 
adherent to the fundamentals that 
underpin our operations. 

“we acted proactively  
to respond to the 
circumstances and 
understand the changes 
that occur within the 
business environment.”
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We also reviewed our strategic plan  
and made important decisions,  
such as the creation of the operations  
Core group, which acts as a liaison 
between the engineering and Contracts 
areas. We wish to offer the best  
possible service in these two areas  
and improve our structure. as we  
create an even greater alignment  
between both areas we will continue 
enhancing the quality of our deliveries. 
furthermore, we also set up an 
operational governance area, which  
will act as the guardian of the Company’s 
management model. this new area  
will connect our strategies to our actions, 
while disseminating our management 
model and ensuring adherence of 
practices carried out by other areas  
to the management model. 

in 2015, we also made progress  
in improving our Corporate governance 
practices. our advisory board, whose 
assignment is similar to that of a board  
of directors, expanded its scope to  
include key issues, such as risk and 
sustainability management. in addition,  
we implemented conduct and ethics 
management tools, such as our Code  
of Conduct which guides our employees  
on the behavior to be adopted in their  
work routine and relationship with  
our stakeholders. We also launched  
a Whistleblower Channel (for complaints) 
and an ethics Committee.

the best and most advanced practices 
pursued by racional engenharia are  
not based on unilateral decision-making. 
to us it is very important to listen to  
our stakeholders and learn whether our 
brand promise is being perceived in  
the same way as it was thought out  
in our strategies. for this, we conducted 
the first organizational Climate survey 
with our employees and a Customer 
satisfaction survey with our clients. 

the results from the surveys were very 
interesting and valuable and enabled us  
to make course corrections that will  
help us to achieve our long-term goals.  
We wish to achieve increasingly significant 
productivity gains that result in good 
governance and management practices. 
our aim is to strike a balance between 
effort and focus from all areas that  
define our success. We believe that this  
is the path that will lead us to our goal  
of becoming the most reliable Company  
in the brazilian construction industry  
and a benchmark for management, talent, 
relationships and productivity.

brazil’s future is still unclear. the country’s 
crisis has reached a point where it is 
difficult to make any forecast. still,  
we are confident that the country will  
return to growth at some point for  
all its typical positive attributes. When  
that time comes, racional engenharia  
will be ready to remain a major player  
in the brazilian construction industry.  
until then, we will continue to pursue  
highly qualified management practices, 
which allow us to be a benchmark  
for productivity. furthermore, we will 
preserve our financial health and continue 
to work in an essentially professional 
manner by focusing on developing and 
training people who share our culture  
and our values. 

these are not easy times. so i would like  
to thank all our employees who, through 
their creativity and energy, actively 
participated in our initiatives in 2015.  
i also thank the trust placed in racional 
engenharia by our clients, suppliers  
and other stakeholders.

NewtoN SimõeS
Ceo
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3 4

company  
     profile

racional engenharia is a leading company in the brazilian construction and 
engineering sector. With a focus on private construction projects, it currently 
delivers innovative solutions to the following market segments: 

1  inDustrial
2  shopping Malls & rEtail
3  builDings 
4  sCiEnCE & tEChnologY 
5  inFrastruCturE 

founded in 1971, racional engenharia has a broad portfolio of construction 
projects and has delivered more than 600 construction projects across brazil 
totaling 9+ million square meters of built area. 

headquartered in the city of são paulo and established as a limited liability 
company, racional engenharia is controlled by its holding company — ra-
cional participações — which includes racional empreendimentos, geared 
to investments in real estate portfolio, and racional desenvolvimento & 
gestão imobiliária, which provides real estate asset management and de-
velopment services.

1 2

5
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target  
  markets 

during 2015, racional engenharia’s client portfolio was reorganized and 
broken down into markets and segments, among which "infrastructure", a 
new market niche in which the Company began to operate during the year.
While being always attentive to market movements and maintaining the key 
fundamentals that have always guided its business, racional engenharia 
decided to tap into the infrastructure market with a focus on the airport and 
logistics segments. the Company was commissioned to build the new pas-
senger terminal (tps2) at the tancredo neves international airport (Con-
fins) in belo horizonte, minas gerais state, in a joint contract with the bh 
airport concession. 

 markets  segments
 industrial automotive

  steel

  ChemiCals

  agriindustrial

  food & beverages

  teXtiles

  Consumer goods 

   eleCtroniCs

 shopping malls & retail  shopping malls

   retail

 buildings  Corporate buildings

  hotels & resorts

  hospitals

  Convention & eXhibition Centers 

   eduCation & Culture Centers 

 sCienCe & teChnology  dataCenters

  r&d Centers

   speCial projeCts

 infrastruCture  airports

   logistiCs
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the new passenger terminal (tps2)  
at tancredo neves international  
airport in belo horizonte, Minas  
gerais state, also known as Confins 
airport, is racional Engenharia’s  
first infrastructure project, which  
was awarded in 2015 and comprises 
construction of the terminal and 
construction and improvements  
of parking lots and road networks 
around the airport. 

Confins airport is a major transit  
hub in brazil. it is expected to reach  
22 million passengers/year in 2016, 
exceeding double the 10.9 million 
passengers who used the airport  
in 2014.

ConFins airport:  
First raCional EngEnharia   
inFrastruCturE proJECt
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racional engenharia’s vision of being the most reliable brand in the market 
where it operates is underpinned by continuous value creation based on the 
Company’s delivery capacity and viability in the long run. 

to racional engenharia, delivery capacity is much larger in scope than build-
ing construction projects. its purpose is to build a trustworthy relationship 
with its clients through the following brand promise: 

we are the most reliable company  
to build with high performance.
we go beyond ensuring delivery within  
the agreed scope, timeframe and quality  
at competitive costs. we understand  
the particularities of each project and  
enhance our client’s business plan  
through innovation, risk management  
and by being solution-driven. 
our teams are deeply committed  
to sound ethical principles and are  
supported by our engineering,  
construction and management skills. 
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our  
   fundamentals

racional engenharia expresses its values, its culture and unique way of 
being through its fundamentals:

inspiration 
ultimately, We are all “Workers in ConstruCtion”.

this inspirational statement expresses racional engenharia’s understand-
ing that the way it thinks and relates with its stakeholders helps it to evolve 
and transform. as it acknowledges the fact that everyone in the Company is 
a ‘worker in construction’ it demonstrates its willingness to learn and grow. 

values 
trust  We promote experiences that reflect the integrity and skills of our 
people and the organization. this is the beginning and the end of everything 
we do.

aesthetiCs  We express our values through our attitude and the organization 
of our workplace environment. We ensure that form reflects our content.

“solutionment”1  We anticipate the need and seek the solution. our attitude 
is the result of solution combined with movement.

Commitment  We are interested both in the process and the result of a project. 
We are bound by the attitude of continually seeking the success of our projects.

mission 
to develop engineering solutions and build buildings in an innovative and 
competitive way, thus contributing to a better society.

vision 
to be the most reliable brand in our market.

1  “solutionment” = solution + movement. the combination of these two words conveys some-
thing that is very strong in racional engenharia’s culture: the attitude of anticipating the need 
and actively seeking the solution, thus unleashing innovative attitudes. 
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racional engenharia’s vision  
of being the most reliable 
brand in the markets where  
it operates is underpinned  
by continuous value creation 
based on the company’s 
delivery capacity and viability  
in the long run.



3performance    and strategy
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operating  
    performance

in 2015, racional engenharia’s portfolio had seven projects. the markets 
with the largest number of projects were buildings and shopping malls & 
retail with 28.5% each. as regards equivalent revenue, the largest share 
comes from the industrial market with 28.3%, followed by shopping malls & 
retail with 27.4%.. 

the weight of each market broken down by number of projects varies from 
year to year according to the performance of the client’s economic activity 
during a given year. 

 markets  

 industrial  jaguar land rover plant – rio de janeiro

 shopping malls & retail nova iguaÇu shopping mall – rio de janeiro

   park sul shopping mall – rio de janeiro

 buildings loCaliza headQuarters – minas gerais 

   edifíCio ComerCial b32 – sÃo paulo

 sCienCe & teChnology  synChrotron light laboratory  
   (sirius projeCt) – sÃo paulo

 infrastruCture  neW passenger terminal (tps2) at tanCredo  
   neves international airport – minas gerais  

 buildings  marítima yard (1st phase) – rio de janeiro 

 portFolio brEaKDoWn bY MarKEt 

 market  %
 shopping malls & retail   28.5

 buildings   28.5

 industrial  14.3

 sCienCe & teChnology   14.3

 infrastruCture   14.3

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 industrial  28.3

 shopping malls & retail   27.4

 buildings   26.3

 sCienCe & teChnology   13.9

 infrastruCture  4.1

projects  
underway

project completed  
in 2015

number of 
projects

equivalent 
revenue

shopping malls & retail

buildings

industrial

sCienCe & teChnology

infrastruCture
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business  
   strategy

racional engenharia’s business is conducted based on its strategic plan, 
which was built in line with the Company’s fundamentals to guide manage-
ment actions for it to achieve its vision of being the most reliable brand in 
the market where it operates. 

in effect since 2014, the strategic plan establishes a series of actions over 
a four-year period. this does not mean the plan will only be reviewed in 
2018. Continuous development is embedded in the Company’s dna and, 
therefore, its processes and infrastructure are continually revised. 

strategic dimensions
racional engenharia’s strategic plan is divided into four dimensions: value, 
market, management and people. 

to racional engenharia, these dimensions cannot be viewed in isolation. 
each of them is mutually dependent upon the others. therefore, “people 
with knowledge and management processes create solutions for the market 
generating value for all.”

for these dimensions to be conveyed into action, they were broken down 
into action groups in order to ensure clarity for the implementation of the 
strategic plan. 

stratEgY brEaKDoWn 2015 Chart 

 dimensions  purpose   focus

people
with knowledge  
and management 

processes create 
solutions for the market

generating value
for all

Create long-term value 
for shareholders 

Carry out the  
value proposition for  
the Client 

be a benChmark  
for people 

management  
as a strategy

value

market

management

people

profitability, liQuidity, 
governanCe and risks

value proposition, brand, 
CommuniCation and 
business development

planning, implementation, 
Quality and produCtivity

leadership, Climate, 
performanCe / meritoCraCy 
and Career development
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the actions undertaken by the Company during 2015 and described in this 
report are in line with each of these topics. With regard to the value dimen-
sion, for example, racional engenharia made some major strides towards 
enhancing its Corporate governance model, including the adoption of a Code 
of Conduct, which was disseminated among employees through various ini-
tiatives during the year. parallel to the implementation of the Code of Con-
duct, the Company set up an ethics Committee, who is responsible for man-
aging the Code of Conduct. furthermore, it implemented a Whistleblower 
Channel for employee complaints.

as to the market dimension, racional engenharia began to operate in a new 
market niche: infrastructure.

the decision to enter this market was defined by perceived opportunities 
and the Company’s interest in diversifying its business portfolio since it pos-
sesses the technical competence and skills to face new challenges. the first 
contract won by racional engenharia in the infrastructure market is the con-
struction — currently underway —of a new passenger terminal at tancredo 
neves international airport — Confins in belo horizonte, minas gerais state. 
airports and logistics are two segments in the infrastructure market that the 
Company expects to operate in initially.

the fact that racional engenharia has added a new market to its business 
portfolio does not change its b2b dna, given that the Confins project was 
commissioned by the airport’s concession holder. racional engenharia will 
continue to expand its business to new markets, but intends to preserve the 
values that have always underpinned its business.

other initiatives undertaken by the Company during 2015, such as changes 
in its board of executive officers and staff training, are in line with the de-
velopment of the management and people dimensions, respectively.

the management model adopted by racional engenharia is inspired by the 
balanced scorecard (bsC), a world-renowned strategic management meth-
odology. through it, the Company pursues a policy of balancing general 
performance with results achieved. 
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sustainability  
        strategy

Civil construction is an activity that tends to create impact on the environ-
ment and on neighbors of construction sites. racional engenharia is com-
mitted to identifying and reducing such impacts, mitigating risks and contrib-
uting to the development of its neighboring communities and stakeholders.

in this respect, all our projects are submitted to the socio-environmental 
management. our projects comprise a sustainability plan in which a number 
of sustainability-related issues and indicators are worked on seeking the 
best solution to the projects. furthermore, racional engenharia provides 
regular training programs for employees to enable them to work with envi-
ronment issues in a more structured manner.

though efficient, the socio-environmental management model adopted by 
racional engenharia is currently being reviewed so as to achieve even bet-
ter results. throughout 2015, several sustainability concepts were dis-
cussed. the goal is to define a new short-term sustainability matrix enabling 
the environmental management model to evolve and keep up with recent 
changes adopted by the Company when managing other aspects. 

certified  
        projects

racional engenharia was a pioneer in sustainable construction in brazil. 
through our value engineering approach, our projects are adapted so as to 
attain the certification desired by the client both at the operational and eco-
nomic levels. among the most sought-after certifications is the leadership 
in energy and environmental design (leed), which attests to the perfor-
mance of a building that adopts resource management practices, i.e., water 
and energy; the procel edifica certification, which is aimed at encouraging 
the development of projects that make the most of natural lighting and ven-
tilation in buildings; and the aqua certification for sustainable construction, 
which was created by the vanzolini foundation, among others.

several construction projects developed by racional engenharia are leed 
certified. by the end of 2015, twelve Company projects had earned the 
leed seal, while three projects are currently undergoing certification.
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 Centeranel raposo    gold

 itaú teChnology Center     gold

 bm&fbovespa dataCenter     Certified

 telefôniCa vivo dataCenter     gold (the projeCt originally sought silver CertifiCation).  
     the first dataCenter in latin ameriCa to attain leed CertifiCation

 eCopátio braCor imigrantes    gold

 Cidade nova building     Certified (the first leed Certified Corporate building  
     in brazil)

 osWaldo Cruz hospital     gold

 albert einstein hospital – morumbi   faCility gold (the projeCt originally sought the  
     Certified rating)

 albert einstein hospital – perdizes   faCility silver

 morumbi Corporate    gold

 tietê plaza shopping mall    silver (the first shopping mall in the state of sÃo paulo  
     to be leed Certified)

 z toWer     gold

 

 hilton barra hotel

 ge global researCh Center 

 jaguar land rover plant

as well as receiving the leed certification, the hilton barra hotel is seeking 
level a under the procel edifica certification set up by the national energy 
efficiency program for buildings. this certification was developed by the bra-
zilian ministry of mines and energy and the ministry of Cities, in partnership 
with universities and r&d centers. 

leed certified 
projects

projects 
undergoing leed 
certification  

four projeCts reCeived leed CertifiCation in 2015  
(CloCkWise): osWaldo Cruz hospital, bm&fbovespa dataCenter,  
tietê plaza shopping mall and z toWer
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contract  
    modalities

to racional engenharia, the success of its projects results from three inter-
dependent phases: pre-construction, construction and operation. these are 
cycles that complement each other throughout the project and, therefore, 
contract management is done through an integrated view of all engineering 
and Construction phases. 

the pre-construction phase comprises a series of building performance 
requirements, including managing engineering designs through quality 
management plan, pricing and deadlines, logistics and construction meth-
ods, as well as criteria related to value engineering, sustainability and certi-
fications. through this, racional engenharia not only takes into account 
risks and opportunities, but also provides clients with greater assurance in 
decision making. 

in the construction phase, racional engenharia takes full responsibility for the 
overall execution of the work through management of deadlines, costs and 
quality. this phase is followed by the pre-construction phase regardless if the 
design documents were developed by the Company or supplied by the client. 

the operation phase begins when the full engineering and Construction 
cycle is completed and the performance indicators established for the 
project can be measured.

these phases are not static and vary according to the project under con-
struction. racional engenharia has the necessary flexibility to adapt to its 
clients’ needs. three types of contract are available and vary according to the 
Company’s involvement and participation in the project development and con-
struction work:

general ContraCtor (gC)
under a gC contract, racional engenharia undertakes construction work 
based on the design documents prepared and supplied by the client. there-
fore, when acting as a gC, the Company is in charge of the construction phase.

ConstruCtion manager at risk (Cm@risk)
this type of contract is carried out in partnership with the client and architec-
ture and engineering professionals from the pre-construction phase and ra-
cional engenharia contributes its expertise to create the design documents. 
furthermore, it enables the Company to fast track the construction schedule.

design-builder (db)
under a db contract, racional engenharia leads the pre-construction phase 
and is responsible for the preparation of design documents. it is also in 
charge of managing all aspects of the construction phase, from contracts 
with the supply chain involved in the work to compliance with operational re-
quirements and cost, timeframe and quality targets.

pre-construction

construction

operation
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contract management  
at racional engenharia  
is carried out through  
an integrated vision  
of the engineering and 
construction phases.



4governance       and management
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corporate  
   governance

racional engenharia continually seeks the evolution of its Corporate gover-
nance model. although it is a privately held company with concentrated own-
ership, it adopts basic premises related to transparency and ethics in its rela-
tionships, provides comprehensive accounts of its activities, demonstrates 
fairness when dealing with its stakeholders, and carries out a responsible 
management of its business,including economic, social and environmental 
issues. the main goal of doing this is to build trustworthy relationships and 
create value for its stakeholders, thus ensuring the continuity of the Compa-
ny’s activities. 

throughout 2015, racional engenharia made significant strides towards im-
proving its Corporate governance practices, both as regards the role under-
taken by its advisory board and the reorganization of its board of executive 
officers. the year was also characterized by several actions to disseminate 
the Company’s recently published Code of Conduct and the creation of a 
Whistleblower Channel managed by third parties. 

ethics  
   and integrity

after publishing its Code of Conduct at the end of 2014, racional engenha-
ria undertook a series of actions to publicize the Code internally throughout 
2015. the document contains guidelines on the behavior that the Company 
expects from its employees in the workplace and in relationships with its 
stakeholders, i.e., co-workers, customers, suppliers, competitors, society and 
the public sphere, among others.

to make the Code known across the Company and understood among its 
employees, the members of the board of directors led a program that in-
cluded visits to racional engenharia construction sites and events held at its 
head office. to present the document to site employees, a series of lectures 
were presented with an explanation of the conduct that the Company ex-
pects from them and what should be each one’s responsibility. the lecturers 
also informed how staff can adhere formally to the document and how to 
report complaints or questions. the same information was given to the head 
office staff in são paulo at a special workshop. 

the agenda for promoting racional engenharia’s Code was complemented 
by classroom and online training through the Company’s intranet and 
through printed copies of the document distributed to all employees. anoth-
er measure taken was the formalization of the receipt of the Code. all em-
ployees signed an adhesion agreement, which must be renewed on a yearly 
basis, declaring that they are aware of the content of the document. the 
Code of Conduct is also signed by new employees at the time of their ad-
mission, when the document is presented to them in their training.

the guidelines set out in the Code of Conduct should also be observed by 
suppliers and all their contracts with racional engenharia now mention the 
document. by signing it, suppliers commit to follow the practices provided 
for in the Code.

to disseminate the Code’s principles and guidelines and manage its conse-
quences, an ethics Committee was created (see page 30). 
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topics addressed  
by the code of conduct
among the many recommendations contained in the Code include: 

respect for diversity of opinion and freedom of association with any organi-
zation, provided that the employee does so in their personal capacity with-
out interfering with their work routine and the workplace. 

encourage performance and development of Company employees, whereas 
they should be committed to improving the following organizational skills: 
self-growth, interpersonal relationships, result-oriented, change manage-
ment and adherence to the Company’s values.

maintain confidentiality of racional engenharia’s information and its audiences.

Care should be taken when using Company assets, such as equipment, 
goods and communication systems, in line with the procedures for internal 
use of equipment.

zero tolerance for any behavior in the workplace that is characterized as 
moral or sexual harassment, discrimination of any kind, and also work re-
garded as illegal under brazilian law (such as child or forced labor).

whistleblower channel
in line with the best corporate governance practices, racional engenharia set 
up a specific reporting channel for employees to clear out their doubts about 
the Code or to report anonymously any form of misconduct or violation that 
they may have witnessed within the Company. known as Whistleblower 
Channel, the whistleblowing service is operated by an independent third par-
ty. other Company stakeholders can also use of this channel, which is avail-
able from the website (http://www.racional.com/Contato/Canaldenuncias/).

during 2015, several  
face to face and  
online training courses 
and lectures were  
given to employees to 
disseminate the principles 
of racional engenharia’s 
code of conduct. 
employees were also 
briefed on how to formally 
adhere to the document 
and how to report 
complaints anonymously 
or clear out doubts.
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corporate  
    structure

racional engenharia is controlled by its holding company racional partici-
pações, which also owns two other group companies: racional empreendi-
mentos, whose focus is on real estate portfolio investment, and racional 
desenvolvimento & gestão imobiliária, which operates in the development 
and management of real estate assets.

racional empreendimentos
this Company is dedicated to investments in real estate portfolio with a focus 
on assets from the following segments: logistics parks, Corporate buildings 
and events.

racional desenvolvimento  
& gestão imobiliária
this Company is dedicated to creating developments through financial struc-
turing and prospection and purchase of land parcels in strategic locations. to 
complete the cycle of real estate activities, it also offers clients made-to-
measure solutions that range from leasing to build-to-suit contracts. 

furthermore, it acts as real estate asset manager by managing the proper-
ties owned both by racional empreendimentos and by third parties. as 
such, it can identify new business opportunities, such as partnerships that 
result in high profitability, cash generation and long-term contracts in the 
segments of logistics parks, Corporate buildings and events.

racional desenvolvimento e gestão imobiliária operates in synergy with the 
other two companies owned by the holding company. 

the following assets are under  
the management of racional  
desenvolvimento & gestão imobiliária

    loCatED in thE statE oF sÃo paulo anD CitY oF rio DE JanEiro 

	 Centeranel raposo and Centeranel viraCopos logistiCs parks, both loCated in sÃo paulo state 

	 torre sul and torre norte Corporate buildings in rio de janeiro

	 sulamériCa Convention Center in rio de janeiro

	 solar espaÇo de eventos (events venue) in rio de janeiro

raCional 
EMprEEnDiMEntos

raCional 
EngEnharia

raCional 
DEsEnvolviMEnto & 
gEstÃo iMobiliária

raCional 
partiCipaçõEs

asset-oWning Companies 

business management Companies 



30  

governance  
    pillars

racional engenharia’s gorporate governance model seeks to create value 
for its customers, shareholders and other stakeholders. by adopting these 
practices, the management’s commitment is to contribute to the Company’s 
long-term future and sustainability.

the corporate governance structure rests on two main bodies: the advisory 
board and the board of executive officers. both are supported by the exter-
nal audit and by the management and ethics Committee.

made up of professionals of the highest reputation with extensive business 
experience, the advisory board’s role is similar to that of a board of direc-
tors. it provides guidance on best management practices and goals relating 
to economic-financial, social and environmental issues. it analyzes, defines, 
sets guidelines and approves operating policies, strategies and targets, be-
sides evaluating the performance of the Company. the activities of the ad-
visory board have increasingly played a major role within the Company year 
after year. in 2015, meetings were held every 15 days and the work agenda 
included issues related to the strategic review of the business, adjustments 
to the challenges of the market and risk management, among others. the 
advisory board is composed of three members: the controlling shareholder, 
who also serves as the Company’s Ceo, and two independent members. it is 
supported by the management Committees.

the board of executive officers is responsible for the Company’s statregic 
planning and is in charge of management and administration of racional 
engenharia activities. it is currently made up of five executives: the Ceo and 
executives from the following areas: organizational development, opera-
tions, business development and administration and finance.

assisting bodies to the advisory board  
and board of executive officers

ExtErnal auDit 
its chief task is to ensure the reliability of financial statements and dissemi-
nate in a clear manner information of internal and external interest, among 
other duties.

ManagEMEnt CoMMittEEs 
offer support to the advisory board and board of executive officers through 
analysis, research, information exchange and discussions made prior to the 
consideration of issues by those bodies so as to contribute to decision mak-
ing. the management Committees are made up of Company executives and 
act as a liaison between strategy and operation. members discuss at regular 
meetings issues such as operations, business development, human resourc-
es, sustainability, and information technology.

EthiCs CoMMittEE 
its main duty is to ensure dissemination of and compliance with the Code of 
Conduct and follow up on reports of violations. the Committee’s tasks include: 

advisory  
board

board  
of executive 
officers
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define and disseminate the values and ethical principles guiding the 
professional conduct of the Company and its employees.

assess instances of violations of the Code of Conduct principles and 
deliberate on actions to be taken.

reduce the subjectivity of personal interpretations of moral and ethi-
cal principles described in the Code.

ensure a response to Code violations while guaranteeing the confi-
dentiality of information.

meet regularly to review and update the Code, thereby seeking its 
continuous improvement.

alignMEnt ForuMs 
these meetings are spaces created for the discussion and dissemination of 
strategic content between leaders and their teams. held periodically, their 
purpose is to ensure that decisions are made jointly taking into consider-
ation different viewpoints. they also serve as a communications channel 
with all employees to disclose the strategies adopted by the Company.

operational  
   management

in 2015, racional engenharia reorganized its board of executive officers 
and created the operations Core group. the purpose of the new structure 
is to integrate the activities of the Construction and engineering areas and 
function as a link between both. the goal is to create more value to the 
Company’s clients in line with its brand promise (see page 15). bringing the 
two areas close together helps the client’s needs to be understood at the 
core of the business, allowing racional engenharia to offer a differentiated 
and more competitive value proposition than the competitors.

furthermore, the operational governance area was also created in 2015. 
this area is under the strategic planning and finance area and its main duty 
is to disseminate the Company’s management model and verify compliance 
with the practices developed by other areas, including projects underway. it, 
therefore, acts as the guardian of the Company’s management model.

the new set-up is the result of work done over a year with support from fal-
coni Consultores, a renowned management consulting firm, in order to improve 
the Company’s processes. the goal was to map out alternatives to further 
enhance the delivery of products through integrated indicators (operational, 
financial and sustainability) and reports for all areas and hierarchical levels.

parallel to this, training programs were conducted to share the new concepts 
with other employees.

establishing trustworthy relationships is the ethos that guides racional en-
genharia’s activities. however, that credibility is necessarily tied to the quality 
of its deliveries. therefore, the two changes made to the Company’s man-
agement structure in 2015 reinforces racional engenharia’s commitment to 
delivering innovative solutions to its clients with quality and high perfor-
mance, while providing its employees with increasingly effective tools and 
processes for that end. 
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project  
   management

racional engenharia’s is a “projectized” company, i.e., its core business are 
engineering and Construction projects. to manage those projects, the main 
tool used is the racional program for quality and performance (prqd). de-
signed by the Company especially for this purpose, the program allows the 
creation of its own particular management model adapted to the reality of the 
operation. through the prqd, performance targets are defined and processes 
are organized from work practices and routines, thus meeting the require-
ments for each project. 

another feature of the prqd is that it provides greater autonomy to the teams 
to meet the challenges of each project in a more dynamic and flexible way, 
thus ensuring performance and governance. the prqd management is audit-
ed by independent firms, including the occupational health and safety areas.

inspired on the pmi (project management institute) best project manage-
ment practices, the prqd is based on the pmbo k (project management 
book of knowledge). the prqd maps all critical processes of a project and 
through the prqd, practices are organized and routines are structured into 
12 knowledge areas, as shown in the table below:

integration 
communications
scope
quality
supply chain
timeframe
costs
team
risks
occupational safety  
and health (sso)
social & environmental
cash

the contracts are led by a racional engenharia officer who has autonomy in 
decision-making and follows the governance and management standards 
that are applied to all the Company’s construction projects.

risk  
   management

in a crisis like brazil is currently facing, companies tend to assume greater 
risk, due to market conditions and due to their need to be more aggressive 
to win their space in a fiercely competitive market environment.

risk management has always been a key issue for racional engenharia from 
strategy design to operation. in 2015, the Company continued to focus its 
attention on risk management, given the business challenges that it faced. 
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to manage the risks that may affect the business environment, such as 
those related to regulatory aspects, responsibility for the supply chain, brand 
visibility, etc, the Company uses a Corporate risk management matrix. this 
tool is aimed at improving the decision-making process, while contributing to 
increase the Company’s capacity to effectively respond to adverse events. 
through this matrix, some aspects had greater emphasis in 2015, among 
which were macroeconomic risks that could impact the business strategy 
and risks related to fraud, misconduct and financial losses resulting from the 
excessive concentration of key processes in construction works.

as it takes into account all stages of the business, the risk management ma-
trix, allows the risk interface on different work fronts to be identified in a more 
consistent manner. therefore, the risk management matrix allows an initiative 
to have strategic monitoring without losing sight of inherent risks. With this 
global view, racional engenharia has managed to identify interrelations be-
tween operation and risk, prioritize initiatives and make better decisions.

intangible  
   assets

some aspects of racional engenharia are critical to the execution of its 
business strategies for the Company to stand out in the engineering and 
Construction sector and to guarantee its longevity. the Company recogniz-
es that brand, knowledge and human Capital — which are directly related 
to the strategic dimensions (value, market, management and people) — are 
valuable assets and, for this reason, need to be properly dealt with and man-
aged. although these assets are intangible, which makes them impossible 
to be measured — racional engenharia seeks to create supportive environ-
ments for its assets to be protected and developed. 

knowledge management
the Company’s 44-year old history must be preserved and disseminated. the 
knowledge acquired by employees and the experience and expertise gained 
through its projects over time are learning tools to foster innovation and are 
targeted at strategic decisions.

in 2015, racional engenharia changed the way it discusses and shares with 
its employees the lessons learned from its projects. given its purpose to 
build trustworthy relationships with its clients, the Company conducted for 
the first time a satisfaction survey with its employees (see page 41). the 
results of the survey were shared with the teams to identify weaknesses and 
lessons learned and discuss them, thus allowing course corrections during 
the implementation of the projects. as the surveys will be conducted at a 
six-month interval, there will be continuous monitoring of actions taken.

another tool enabled by the Company is the racional.net intranet portal, 
which is available to all employees. the portal contains specific tools to 
share work experiences and project expertise. one of these tools is the 
knowledge bank, which stores the information on all construction projects 
built throughout racional engenharia’s history. 
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brand
racional engenharia’s more than four decades of history have enabled it to 
build a brand that is recognized for its reliability and commitment to its cli-
ents. this was only possible thanks to a number of variables, ranging from 
the Company’s and its employees’ conduct to the way it relates to its stake-
holders, through to its construction projects and strategic decisions that 
have proven to be effective over time.

one way to contribute to the brand perception is through the relationships 
that the Company maintains with society, partners or associations through 
initiatives aimed at contributing to the development of the Civil Construction. 

green building CounCil brazil (gbC brazil) seeks to foster sustainable 
construction in brazil. racional engenharia also participates in the work group 
responsible for adapting the leed (leadership in energy and environmental 
design) certification to brazilian standards. the leed certification is a seal of 
approval attesting to a building’s compliance with sustainability standards.

sÃo paulo environmental Committee (Comasp / sindusCon-sp) the pur-
pose of this committee is to disseminate information and train civil construc-
tion employees on how to make the industry more sustainable through good 
environment-related practices on relevant topics such as legal timber, 
Waste management and Carbon emissions.

instituto ethos is an association whose purpose is to disseminate corpo-
rate social responsibility practices. racional engenharia is a member of the 
instituto ethos since 2012 and has contributed to the development of social 
technologies in an ongoing improvement process in corporate social re-
sponsibility. an example of this is the Company’s partnership with uniethos 
in 2013 for the development of actions for its supply chain.

instituto para promoÇÃo do trabalho empreendedor (trabalho e vida) 
offers technical programs, lectures and seminars on Workplace safety, 
health and Quality of life, besides disseminating new training technologies. 
racional engenharia is often invited to talk at the events organized by the 
institute and to share its experience in safety, environment and health, which 
are critical topics for the civil construction sector. the target audience for 
these events are labor professionals, officials from the public ministry of la-
bor and the federal ministry of labor, trade unions, and various companies.

human capital
people who make racional engenharia are recognized by the Company as 
part of its business strategy. this understanding is clear since people is one 
of the dimensions of its strategy (see page 34). to enable people to develop 
their careers and provide growth opportunities to its employees, the Compa-
ny strives to establish a work environment that is conducive to learning, 
knowledge sharing and continuous improvement. this includes structured 
training programs and potential enhancement programs (see page 37).

associations
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innovation
racional engenharia’s focus on meeting and anticipating its clients’ demands 
is often faced with the challenge of developing highly complex buildings, a 
feature that requires ongoing search for new technologies and construction 
solutions. furthermore, racional engenharia works on projects that pose 
extremely difficult technical challenges such as the sirius project, a ground-
breaking particle accelerator never before built in brazil, and buildings de-
signed by international architects.

given the nature of its activities, racional engenharia is not a Company fo-
cused on technology design or development. therefore, innovation is pro-
posed as a means to provide smarter solutions, while adapting the latest 
technologies to the reality and needs of its clients.

in order to provide our clients with the latest in engineering and Construc-
tion, racional engenharia seeks to keep up-to-date with what is being devel-
oped in other markets and in the areas where it operates. the aim is that the 
Company’s projects benefit from cutting-edge civil construction knowledge 
to ensure quality and high performance of its developments.

racional Engenharia is engaged in the 
construction works of the sirius project, 
which consists of building a new fourth 
generation particle accelerator for the 
national synchroton light laboratory 
(lnls), the most modern laboratory  
in latin america, developed by the 
national research Centre for Energy 
and Materials (CnpEM). the synchrotron 
light is a special type of radiation  
used to obtain high definition images  
in analysis techniques of structural 
materials and molecules.

standing on a plot of 150,000 square 
meters, the building is the largest  
and most complex scientific facility  
ever built in brazil as it will require 
unprecedented mechanical and thermal 
stability. When completed, it will  
be the largest laboratory of its kind  
in the southern hemisphere and one  
of the world’s largest. it can be used  
by researchers from different fields  
of knowledge and will enable the 
advancement of strategic areas for 
brazil, such as agriculture, health  
and energy.

largEst sYnChroton light laboratorY  
in thE southErn hEMisphErE  
anD onE oF thE WorlD’s largEst
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employees
people who make racional engenharia have a strategic importance. each 
person performing different tasks and roles is critical for the Company to 
achieve its goals. therefore, people are one of the pillars of its strategic 
plan. that is why the Company strives to provide a healthy work environ-
ment, where employees feel appreciated and are encouraged to develop 
their skills and competencies.

the year 2015 was quite challenging for our business. the combination of 
economic and political crisis led to a worse scenario than in 2014, when the 
Company began to make structural adjustments to adapt to the market re-
ality. even in turbulent times as these, the Company has managed to retain 
the largest amount of people possible and in 2015 continued its employee 
development programs with a focus on leadership and technical training.

one of the highlights of the year was the implementation of the first organi-
zational Climate survey, which will be held on a yearly basis. despite the 
county’s adverse economic conditions, the feedback from employees through 
the survey was overall very positive.

organizational climate 
survey 
for the first time, racional engenharia conducted an organizational Climate 
survey in 2015. geared to employees who occupy leadership and adminis-
trative positions, as well as technical staff, the survey had a 70% participa-
tion rate and a 78% satisfaction rate.

through a quantitative and qualitative approach, respondents could answer 
anonymously about issues such as compensation, benefits, work tools, their 
relationship with leaders and co-workers, and communication transparency, 
among others. the best rated answers refer to employees taking pride in 
their work, safety, relationships and interaction. at the other end of the line, 
employees mentioned career opportunity and Company policies.

based on these data, a Climate Committee was created to discuss the key 
points identified in the survey and propose improvements. the Committee 
meets weekly and responds to the executive group.

the survey was applied in june and july 2015 and will be repeated every year. 

training 
in 2015, 2% of racional engenharia’s net income was allocated to training 
employees, an amount equivalent to brl 0.5 million. of this total, 60% was 
allocated to internal programs, such as leadership development, e-learning, 
executive group coaching, and specific technical training. the remaining 
40% was used for external programs, such as conferences, workshops and 
training programs in other organizations.
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meritocracy
employee assessment is done through performance management by com-
bining individual goals and behavioral evaluation. the model was first adopt-
ed in 2012, but has been continually improved every year. in 2015, there 
was an increase in the number of employee skills assessed, going beyond 
meritocracy concepts. furthermore, functional issues and evaluations ob-
tained from internal clients were also assessed. the skills assessment — 
applied to all salaried employees except for interns and trainees — provides 
the basis for the preparation of the pdi — individual development plan for 
the following year.

to assess the organizational skills, the 180 degrees method is adopted for 
officers, managers, coordinators, supervisors, foremen, engineers, archi-
tects and buyers, who conduct a self-assessment and are also assessed by 
their leaders and three internal clients. other monthly paid employees are 
submitted to 90 degrees assessments, whose process is similar to the 180 
degrees, but without the assessment of internal clients.

on the other hand, functional skills are measured through the assessment 
of knowledge, skills and attitudes that the Company regards as essential for 
the employee to perform his/her expected tasks. functional skills differ for 
each position and are based on job descriptions.

assigning a variable compensation according to the employees’ behavior 
and results delivered is a way for racional engenharia to recognize their 
potential and motivate and challenge people to express their talents in line 
with the Company’s business strategies.
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employee  
profile
by year end 2015, racional engenharia had 485 employees. the following 
graphs break down the Company’s employees by gender and age:

by gender
%

26 
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by age group 
%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

over 50 years old

30 to 50 years old

under 30 years old 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
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men
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occupational safety  
and health 
the occupational safety and health area was restructured during the year 
and was merged with the environment division. this merger is due to the 
fact that the environment area handles issues related to safety and health. 
furthermore, work processes were also reviewed.

these changes did not affect the diligent attitude with which racional en-
genharia has always handled safety and health related issues. the Compa-
ny is very strict with regard to its employees’ health and safety, including 
contract workers providing services on its construction sites. racional en-
genharia believes that its employees’ health, welfare and human rights are 
critical for the execution of a business activity. therefore, the Company is 
recognized by the market as a benchmark for the prevention of work-related 
accidents and diseases. to manage this issue, it adopts specific procedures, 
preventive actions, audits, and occupational medicine activities.

preventive actions
through awareness training and seminars, health and immunization cam-
paigns and dental programs, among other actions, the Company dissemi-
nates safety and health related information to reduce bias, prevent diseases 
and, most of all, promote an attitude change for employees to understand 
their responsibility in making their workplace a safe environment.

internal and  
external audits
audits are undertaken periodically through visits to construction sites and 
worker’s quarters maintained by contractors to ensure that the required doc-
uments are correct and ideal health and safety conditions are met. if cases 
of non-compliance, racional engenharia immediately takes corrective .

Jaguar land rover’s construction site  
in itatiaia, rio de Janeiro state reached 
a major milestone in the second half  
of 2015 completing 1.3 million hours 
without lost time accidents. 

the facility is the first Jaguar land 
rover plant outside the uK. When 
ready, it will boast 60,000 m2 and  
the capacity to produce 24,000 cars  
a year. this total should be reached 
gradually as from commencement  
of operations scheduled for 2016.

MorE than onE Million hours  
Without lost tiME aCCiDEnts 
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clients
more than erecting buildings, racional engenharia wants to build relation-
ships. therefore, our clients are the focus of our work. the Company mobiliz-
es human, technical and management resources to cater to its clients by in-
teracting and establishing bonds of trust, recognition and loyalty with them.

racional engenharia has a brand promise based on its fundamentals and 
principles that guide its business. however, the client’s perception as to 
deliveries and the Company was never measured until 2014. in 2015 the 
Company opened a new communication channel with its clients through a 
satisfaction survey. the Company hopes to gauge and assess the connec-
tion between the promise of sale and actual delivery, while ensuring that 
racional engenharia’s brand promise is being perceived, as established in 
its corporate strategy.

among the criteria assessed by clients in the survey are aspects related to 
quality, competence, promptness of service, punctuality, and proximity to 
clients. the ratings given by respondents to the survey are presented to the 
contract manager and his/her teams in order to promote a space for reflec-
tion and discussion on improvements. this evaluation is also taken into ac-
count in the employees’ variable compensation. 

supply  
    chain

racional engenharia’s efficiency and competitiveness are also related to the 
performance of its suppliers. to train and develop their skills, the Company 
offers a series of initiatives aimed at contributing to the management chal-
lenges faced by suppliers.

in 2015, for example, the Company organized an event to coach new contrac-
tors on the e-social, an initiative of the brazilian government that seeks to 
unify and facilitate the transmission of information that employers need to 
provide about their employees. the event had four different groups in são 
paulo and rio de janeiro.

basic training in 
business management 
racional engenharia also offers the program "Construction entrepreneurs", 
which focuses on training micro and small suppliers of contract services. to 
contribute to the professionalization of these entrepreneurs, the program 
includes five modules: administration, health and safety, finance, human 
resources, and production and sustainability, totaling 36 classroom hours. 
this is a joint initiative between racional engenharia and its partners se-
brae-sp, hm occupational safety and sindusCon-sp.

the Company anticipates a new group for 2016, but the content of the pro-
gram will be reworked. the experience gained from the first edition of the 
program in 2013, which involved 39 partner suppliers and training of over 100 
people, will guide the restructuring of the program to be continued in 2016. 
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supply chain evaluation  
and development 
faced by the challenge of aligning the entire supply chain with the best 
market practices and with the fundamentals of its business, the Company’s 
actions in this regard have been underpinned by a risk and opportunity 
roadmap. drawn up in 2013 with the support of uniethos, this roadmap 
was first prepared based on a diagnosis made from interviews with internal 
and external stakeholders.

the roadmap is supported by the development of a supply chain manage-
ment model based on three major plans: risk management, development 
and relationship, whose activities will be established by 2016. the manage-
ment of this project is the responsibility of the supply Chain Committee, led 
by racional engenharia’s executive vice president and composed of repre-
sentatives from various Company areas, such as engineering, Construction, 
legal, finance, and sustainability, among other areas. 

society
throughout 2015, racional engenharia sponsored various social projects 
through tax incentive laws. nine programs dedicated to the promotion of 
arts, health, education, sports and culture were benefited. the programs 
took place in the cities of são paulo, barretos (são paulo state), and belo 
horizonte (minas gerais state).

funds for the following programs were allocated through the rouanet law 
(federal law for incentive to Culture #8313):

barracão Cultural 15 anos exhibition, an initiative of barraCÃo Cultural 

produÇões artístiCas, a são paulo based art group made up of artists 
from different backgrounds, who use their distinct technical skills and aes-
thetic sense to promote art education among children and adults and the 
democratization of access to art performances. 

promoting Culture in hospitals, an initiative of assoCiaÇÃo arte desper-

tar, an association dedicated to social initiatives in hospitals and local com-
munities in são paulo and its metropolitan region. 

scanning of the historical Collection from são paulo polytechnic school 
(poli), developed by the foundation for engineering teChnologiCal 

development, which was created to support activities and projects devel-
oped for the market containing technology produced at poli. 

racional engenharia also sponsored the study of microbial profiles in human 
tumors: implications for tumorigenesis, prognosis and response to treatment 
through the national support program for oncology Care (pronon). this proj-
ect is developed by aC Camargo foundation, a private são paulo non-prof-
it organization and one of the world’s largest integrated cancer r&d centers. 

in addition, through the national program for support to healthcare of per-
sons with disabilities (pronas), racional engenharia sponsored the project 
the sound of tomorrow, developed by the minas gerais Center for hear-

ing rehabilitation (Cemear) in the city of belo horizonte. Cemear is a 
non-profit association whose mission is to ensure that individuals with hear-
ing impairment have access to healthcare services such as diagnostics, 
screening, counseling, speech and psychological therapy, as well as access 
to social services.
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another initiative supported by the Company was the municipal fund for the 
elderly, which is maintained by the pio Xii foundation — barretos CanCer 

hospital. located in the city of barretos, são paulo state, the hospital is a 
benchmark for cancer treatment in brazil. the funds provided by racional 
engenharia for this initiative were raised through the elderly act. 

using the sports act, racional engenharia funded the project training Cham-
pions, which is developed by the disabled sports assoCiation (add) in são 
paulo. add undertakes projects aimed at facilitating the integration and inclu-
sion of people with disabilities in society through adapted sports activities, 
educational support and training courses. 

two other social projects were sponsored by racional engenharia through 
the state Council for the rights of Children and adolescents (Condeca) and 
enabled by the municipal fund for Children and adolescents (funcad) in 
são paulo: 

smile, healthy eating is Citizenship is a project developed by assoCiaÇÃo 

obra do berÇo, which provides basic social support to children, adoles-
cents, adults and families from underprivileged communities located in the 
south area of são paulo.

multidisciplinary Care for Children and adolescents with serious diseases 
and psychic disorders is a project undertaken by assoCiaÇÃo saúde Cri-

anÇa sp (asCsp), a social organization that works with a groundbreaking 
method to restructure the families of at-risk children served by public 
healthcare facilities and promote their self-development. 

actions geared  
to the community
racional engenharia encourages the participation of its employees in ac-
tions aimed at the welfare of neighboring communities to its construction 
sites. throughout 2015, on-site teams undertook the following social-related 
initiatives: 

the team working on the park sul shopping mall site paid a visit to the ngo 
vih-ver located in the community of Caieiras, city of volta redonda, rio de 
janeiro state. several personal hygiene items were delivered at the ngo 
during the visit. in return, the ngo leader gave a lecture on std/aids during 
the internal Work accident prevention Week (sipat) at the site. the ngo has 
treated people with hiv for 25 years. 

at the site of the new localiza headquarters under construction in belo hor-
izonte, minas gerais state, racional engenharia sponsored for the third con-
secutive year a Children’s day party for the bananal Community, a neighbor 
to the site. on the occasion, several toys were given away and artists were 
hired to entertain the children. 

another initiative also directed at children aged 2 to 8 years old was under-
taken at the construction site of the jaguar land rover plant in itatiaia, rio 
de janeiro state. in partnership with the itatiaia development department, 
racional engenharia distributed nearly one thousand toys to underprivi-
leged children of the local community. 
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prospects
brazil’s current business environment scenario is not clear enough to make 
any confident assumptions about the future. brazil is in the midst of a deep 
institutional crisis with political impasse and uncertainty, leading to a downturn 
in economic activity and increasingly high inflation and unemployment rates.

as an engineering and Construction Company driven by the b2b private 
market, racional engenharia’s business depends on a key variable: that in-
vestors — the Company’s potential clients — have long-term plans for brazil 
by investing in business developments. if there is no clearer picture of the 
direction that the brazilian economy and politics is taking, a conducive envi-
ronment cannot be created to attract this kind of investment.

racional engenharia is confident about the future of the country and hopes 
that the current situation can be reversed in the short run. the Company 
remains committed to improving its processes and management to continue 
being a leader in brazil’s private construction sector when the country re-
sumes its growth path.

racional engenharia’s management focus in 2016 will be on profitability 
improvement and increased productivity. in the Company’s view, scale gains 
will derive from its ability to be competitive.

a crisis like brazil is currently facing calls for the need to understand differ-
ent contexts and act quickly. in this respect, the Company expects to contin-
ue to expand its business pipeline by diversifying its client base. regardless 
of what the future holds, the contracts already signed with the Company will 
ensure an adequate performance in 2016.

this is not the first time brazil has faced a major crisis. in its 44 year old 
history, racional engenharia has experienced and overcome different re-
cession and expansion phases in the brazilian economy and in its industry. 
during those periods, the Company witnessed the country go through some 
major economic ups and downs and learned that times of crisis always bring 
opportunities. therefore, we continue to believe in brazil’s potential and the 
regrowth of its economy and we will work to anticipate the future demands 
of a new growth cycle that lies ahead.
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independent auditors’  
report on the  
financial statements 

 to the management and Quotaholders of 
 raCional engenharia ltda.
 sÃo paulo — sp

We have examined the financial statements of racional engenharia ltda. 
(“Company”), comprising the balance sheet as of december 31, 2015 and 
the related statements of operations, comprehensive income, changes in 
quotaholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, as well as the 
summary of the significant accounting practices and other explanatory notes.

responsibility of management  
for the financial statements
the Company’s management is responsible for the preparation and ade-
quate presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the 
accounting practices adopted in brazil, as well as the internal controls it 
deemed necessary to enable the preparation of these financial statements 
free of significant distortions, regardless of whether the latter were caused 
by fraud or error.

responsibility of the  
independent auditors
our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audit, undertaken in accordance with brazilian and internation-
al auditing standards. these standards require compliance with ethical re-
quirements by the auditors and that the audit be planned and executed with 
the objective of obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial state-
ments are free from significant distortions.

an audit involves the carrying out of procedures selected to obtain evidence 
related to the amounts and disclosures presented in the financial statements. 
the procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including an 
evaluation of the risk of significant distortions in the financial statements, ir-
respective of whether these are caused by fraud or errors. in this assess-
ment of risks, according to auditing standards, the auditor considers relevant 
internal controls for the preparation and adequate presentation of the finan-
cial statements of the Company, to plan the audit procedures that are appro-
priate in the circumstances, but not for purposes of expressing an opinion on 
the efficacy of these internal controls of the Company. an audit also includes 
the evaluation of the adequacy of adopted accounting practices and reason-
ability of accounting estimates made by management, as well as an assess-
ment of the presentation of financial statements taken as a whole.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion.
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opinion
in our opinion, the individual aforementioned financial statements present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of racional engenharia 
ltda. as of december 31, 2015, the performance of its operations and its 
cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting practices 
adopted in brazil.

other issues 
supplementary information

We have also examined the information contained in the attached supple-
mentary Chart for the year ended december 31, 2015, prepared under man-
agement’s responsibility, the purpose of which is to present the total amount 
of services performed under the Company’s responsibility in the year and 
allow additional analyses, which are not required as part of the basic finan-
cial statements. such information was submitted to the same audit proce-
dures previously described and, in our opinion, these supplementary state-
ments are adequately presented, in relation to the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole.

    sÃo paulo, marCh 15, 2016
    
    kpmg auditores independentes
    CrC 2sp014428/o -6
    
    Wagner petelin
    aCCountant CrC 1sp142133/o -7
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           notE  2015  2014

assets   Cash and Cash eQuivalents     4  9.719  537

   interest earning bank deposits    5  93.456  30.215

   trade aCCounts reCeivable    6  38.348  46.100

   advanCes to suppliers        1.756   938

   taX assets       7  5.584   9.940

   other Credits reCeivable       2.816   2.871

   total CurrEnt assEts       151.679   90.601

   trade aCCounts reCeivable    6  2.428   9.477

   judiCial deposits         17  1.843   1.863

   deferred taX assets     8  5.296   5.956

   total non-CurrEnt assEts      9.567   17.296

   investments         85  85

   property, plant and eQuipment    9  1.294   1.947

   intangible assets      10  9.812   11.184

   total non-CurrEnt assEts      20.758   30.512

   total assEts         172.437   121.113

           notE  2015  2014

liabilities  finanCings       11  741  2,039

   suppliers         11,051  4,413

   labor and soCial seCurity obligations   12  18,102  15,803

   taX liabilities       13  4,390  2,513

   inCome and soCial Contribution taXes payable    2,052  –

   pledges and retentions      14  4,200  198

   advanCes from Clients     15  68,503  33,785

   provision for guarantee of ConstruCtion Works 16  1,602  2,740

   other aCCounts payable       723  293

   total CurrEnt liabilitiEs       111,364  61,784

 

   finanCings       11  –  676

   pledges and retentions      14  3,613  6,744

   provision for ContingenCies    17  5,086  8,606

   employee benefits      19  1,731  1,622

   soCial seCurity obligations    12  1,388  –

   total non-CurrEnt liabilitiEs      11,818  17,648

   quotaholDErs’ EquitY     18

   Capital         21,615  21,615

   eQuity evaluation adjustments      144  (2)

   retained earnings        27,496  20,068

   total quotaholDErs’ EquitY      49,255  41,681

   total liabilitiEs        123,182  79,432

   total liabilitiEs anD sharEholDErs’ EquitY    172,437  121,113

balance  
sheets

 as of deCember 31, 2015 and 2014
 (in thousands of reais)

see the aCCompanying notes to the finanCial statements
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         notE   2015   2014

net inCome (loss) from ConstruCtion ContraCts  20   325,395   262,379

Cost of serviCes rendered      21   (247,046)   (228,623)

gross inCoME          78,349   33,756

administrative and CommerCial eXpenses   21   (51,593)   (33,721)

depreCiations and amortizations        (2,658)   (3,026)

other inCome           2,500   35

inCoME bEForE nEt FinanCial inCoME anD taxEs     26,598   (2,956)

finanCial inCome        23   10,825   3,800

finanCial eXpenses        23   (2,460)   (1,671)

nEt FinanCial inCoME         8,365   2,129

inCoME (loss) bEForE taxEs         34,963   (826)

Current inCome and soCial Contribution taXes   22   (7,409)   –

deferred inCome and soCial Contribution taXes  22   (660)   (5,288)

nEt inCoME (loss) For thE YEar        26,894   (6,114)

statements  
of operations

 years ended deCember 31, 2015 and 2014
 (in thousands of reais)

see the aCCompanying notes to the finanCial statements

            2015   2014

nEt inCoME (loss) For thE YEar        26,894   (6,114)

full reCognition of aCtuarial losses       146   (2)

CoMprEhEnsivE inCoME For thE YEar       27,040   (6,116)

statements of  
comprehensive income

 years ended deCember 31, 2015 and 2014
 (in thousands of reais)
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see the aCCompanying notes to the finanCial statements

statements of changes  
in quotaholders’ equity

 years ended deCember 31, 2015 and 2014
 (in thousands of reais)

balanCEs at JanuarY 1, 2014     21,615  –   48,059  69,674

alloCation of retained earnings

 payment of dividends as 2014 minute  –  –    (21,877)  (21,877)

formation of Comprehensive inCome:

 (–) losses on aCtuarial obligations  –  (2)   –  ( 2)

loss for the year      –  –    (6,114)  (6,114)

balanCEs at DECEMbEr 31, 2014    21,615  (2)   20,068  41,681

alloCation of retained earnings

 payment of dividends as minutes 2015  
 (note 18 b.)      –  –   (19,466)  (19,466)

 (+) gains on aCtuarial obligations  –  146   –  146

net inCome for the year     –  –   26,894  26,894

balanCEs at DECEMbEr 31, 2015    21,615  144   27,496  49,255

Evaluation 
aDJustMEnt 

EquitY
Capital 
Capital 

rEtainED 
Earnings (loss) total
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            2015   2014

Cash FloW FroM opErating aCtivitiEs

inCome (loss) before taXes         34,963   (826)

adjustments for:

 depreCiations and amortizations       2,658   3,026

 reversal of alloWanCe for doubtful aCCounts    –   (48)

 finanCial eXpenses on loans, finanCing and installment plans   651   602

 interest on interest earning bank deposits     (8,163)   (3,201)

 (reversal) formation of provision for guarantee  
 of ConstruCtion Works        (1,138)   740

 provision for employee benefits       254   1,620

 loss in the sale of property, plant and eQuipment    29   –

 (reversal) provision for reserves      (3,520)   1,236

            25,734   3,149

ChangEs in assEts anD liabilitiEs  
(inCrEasE) / DECrEasE in assEts 

 trade aCCounts reCeivable        14,801   4,137

 taX assets          4,356   (4,071)

 advanCes to suppliers         (818)   1,388

 other Credits reCeivable         55    2,053

 judiCial deposits         20    442

inCrEasE / (DECrEasE) in liabilitiEs 

 suppliers          6,638   (4,895)

 pledges and retentions         871   (4,332)

 advanCes from Clients        34,718   4,336

 labor and soCial seCurity obligations       3,687   (20,916)

 taX liabilities          1,935   (926)

 other aCCounts payable        430   (103)

inCome and soCial Contribution taXes paid      (5,357)   (346)

interest paid           (176)   (330)

nEt Cash FloW FroM (usED i) opErating aCtivitiEs     86,894   (20,414)

Cash FloW FroM invEstMEnt aCtivitiEs

interest earning bank deposits        (55,077)   42,253

aCQuisition of fiXed assets and intangible assets     (681)    (1,151)

Cash from disposal of fiXed assets        19   –

Cash FloW (usED in) FroM invEstMEnt aCtivitiEs      (55,739)    41,102

Cash FloW FroM FinanCing aCtivitiEs

payments of taXes in installments        (58)    (70)

payment of loans and finanCing        (2,449)    (2,203)

payment of dividends          (19,466)    (21,877)

Cash FloW usED in FinanCing aCtivitiEs        (21,973)    (24,150)

nEt inCrEasE (DECrEasE) in Cash anD Cash EquivalEnts     9,182   (3,462)

Cash and Cash eQuivalents at january 1       537   3,999

Cash and Cash eQuivalents at deCember 31       9,719    537

nEt inCrEasE (DECrEasE) in Cash anD Cash EquivalEnts     9,182   (3,462)

statements of  
cash flows

 years ended deCember 31, 2015 and 2014
 (in thousands of reais)

see the aCCompanying notes to the finanCial statements
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notes to the  
financial statements 

 (in thousands of reais)

1 operations 
racional engenharia ltda. (“Company”) is engaged in the management and 
execution of construction works, and operates chiefly as a construction 
company.

the Company belongs to the racional group, and is a subsidiary of racional 
participações ltda.

2 preparation  
 basis

(a) statEMEnt oF ConForMitY

the financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting 
practices adopted in brazil.

the issue of financial statements was authorized by the executive board of 
the Company on march 15, 2015.

(b) MEasuring basis

the financial statements were prepared based on the historical cost, except 
for those items measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(C) FunCtional anD prEsEntation CurrEnCY

these financial statements are being presented in brazilian real, functional 
currency of the Company. all financial information presented in brl has been 
rounded to the nearest value, except otherwise indicated.

(D) usE oF EstiMatEs anD JuDgMEnts

the preparation of financial statements according to CpC standards requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
application of accounting policies and the reported values of assets, liabili-
ties, income and expenses. actual results may differ from these estimates.

estimates and assumptions are revised on an ongoing basis. revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the year in which the estimates are 
revised and in any future periods affected.

information about critical judgment referring to the accounting policies ad-
opted which impact significantly the amounts recognized in the financial 
statements are included in the following notes:
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■  notE 6 — recognition and measurement of allowances for doubtful accounts;

■  notE 8 — recognition of deferred tax assets;

■  notE 9 — definition of useful life of property, plant and equipment;

■  notE 10 — definition of intangible assets’ useful lives and goodwill recover-
ability; 

■  notE 17 — recognition and measurement of provisions for Contingencies.

3 significant  
 accounting policies

the accounting policies described below have been consistently applied to all 
the years presented in these financial statements.

(a) opErating inCoME

income is measured for the fair value of the payment received or receivable 
less estimated commercial discounts granted.

ConstruCtion

When results from a construction agreement cannot be reliably estimated, 
the corresponding revenue is recognized for the amount of incurred costs 
whose recovery is considered likely. the costs of each agreement are recog-
nized as expenses for the year when incurred.

Changes in labor costs, claims and incentive payments are included insofar 
as such costs can be reliably measured and the receiving is probable.

When total costs are likely to exceed an agreement’s total revenues, the 
estimated loss is immediately recorded as expense.  

the amounts of appropriated income, less installments received, are record-
ed as trade receivables or advances from clients, when applicable. in addi-
tion, amounts received before construction start-up are recorded as ad-
vances from clients.

(i) fiXed-priCe ConstruCtion agreements

for fixed-price construction agreements, revenues are recognized for the 
cost percentage incurred in the work, in relation the total budgeted cost, and 
that percentage is applied to the recognized revenue, adjusted according to 
conditions of the construction contract (percentage of work completed).

(ii) ConstruCtion management agreement

for agreements where the Company is reimbursed for costs estimated and 
approved by the parties, or otherwise defined costs, plus a percentage there-
of as management fee, or is paid by means of an agreed-upon fixed com-
pensation, the revenue is recognized with basis on costs incurred through 
the balance sheet date.
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(iii) miXed agreements 

some agreements establish that the client will provide certain materials to 
be used in the works, and will directly contract with suppliers. in those cas-
es, to calculate the percentage of the cost incurred in the works in relation 
to the total estimated cost, the costs of the materials directly acquired by 
the client is not considered as incurred cost and thus is not included in the 
total estimated cost, for purposes of determining the percentage of work 
completed which is used for purposes of calculating the revenue to be actu-
ally recorded and earned by the Company. likewise, that cost portion also 
does not include the basis for determining the recognized revenue.

FinanCial inCoME anD ExpEnsEs

the financial income comprises, basically, asset and liability interest from fi-
nancial investments and loans. such interest rates are recognized in the re-
sult for the year using the effective interest rate methodology.

(b) FinanCial instruMEnts

non-DErivativE FinanCial assEts — rECognition  
anD DErECognition

the Company recognizes loans and receivables initially at the date of the 
transaction that originated them. all other financial assets (including assets 
designated at fair value through profit or loss) are initially recognized on the 
date of the negotiation under which the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.

the Company fails to recognize a financial asset when the contractual rights 
to the cash flow of the asset expire, or when the Company transfers the 
rights to the reception of contractual cash flows over a financial asset in a 
transaction in which essentially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the 
financial asset are transferred. any interest created or retained by the Com-
pany in such transferred financial assets are recognized as an asset or lia-
bility separately.

financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the 
balance sheet only when the Company has legally enforceable right to set 
off and there is intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously. 

non-DErivativE FinanCial assEts — MEasurEMEnt

finanCial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

a financial asset is classified as measured at fair value through profit or loss 
if it is held for trading or is designated as such upon initial recognition. the 
transaction costs are recognized in income (loss) as incurred. they are 
measured at fair value and changes in the fair value, including gains with 
interest and dividends, are recognized in the income for the year.
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loans and reCeivables

such assets are initially recognized at fair value plus any transaction costs 
directly assignable. after their initial recognition, loans and receivables are 
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

Cash and Cash eQuivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances of cash and cash equivalents, 
banks checking account and interest earning bank deposits with original 
maturities of three months or less as of the contracting date, which are sub-
ject to an insignificant risk of change in fair value and are used by the Com-
pany to manage short-term obligations.

non-DErivativE FinanCial liabilitiEs — rECognition,  
WritE-oFF anD MEasuring

the Company recognizes debt securities issued on the date that they are 
originated. all other financial liabilities (including those liabilities designated 
at fair value through profit or loss) are recognized initially on the negotiation 
date on which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. the Company fails to recognize a financial liability when 
its contractual obligations are discharged or canceled or expired.

such financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value plus any transaction 
costs directly assignable. after their initial recognition, these financial liabili-
ties are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

(C) aCCounts rECEivablE

trade accounts receivable comprise amounts receivable in virtue of con-
struction agreements in the normal course of the Company’s activities. if the 
payment term is equivalent to one year or less, accounts receivable are clas-
sified as current assets. otherwise, they are presented in non-current as-
sets. accounts receivable are represented by billed and unbilled services 
related to construction agreements in an advanced stage of construction.  

trade accounts receivable are recognized at fair value, according to the in-
come recognition and, subsequently, measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate method less allowance for doubtful accounts (“pCld” 
or impairment).

(D) propErtY, plant anD EquipMEnt

rECognition anD MEasurEMEnt

property, plant and equipment items are stated at historical acquisition or 
construction cost, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, 
when required. 

fixed-asset costs comprise expenditures directly attributable to the asset 
acquisition/construction, including material costs, direct labor costs and any 
other costs for installing the asset in place, and creating conditions for their 
operationability. 
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When parts of a property, plant and equipment item have different useful 
lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of pp&e.

gains and losses on disposal of a property, plant and equipment item are 
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the book value of 
property, plant and equipment and are recognized net within “other income” 
in the statement of income.

other expenses are recorded as capital expenditures only if there is an in-
crease in the economic benefits of the related item; otherwise the items are 
charged to income as expense.

DEprECiation

fixed assets items are depreciated using the straight-line method in the in-
come for the year based on the estimated economic useful life of each compo-
nent. leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or the 
estimated useful life of the asset, unless it is reasonably certain that the Com-
pany will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term. land is not depreciated.

estimated average useful lives for the current and comparative year are as 
follows:

    maChinery and eQuipment 10 years

    furniture and fiXtures 10 years

    it eQuipment 5 years

    vehiCles 5 years

    leasehold improvements 10 years

the depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are revised at the 
reporting date of the financial statements and any adjustments are recog-
nized as changes to accounting estimates.

(E) intangiblE assEts

gooDWill

goodwill has as the economic fundamental the expectation of future profitabil-
ity and arises from a transaction conducted in a period prior to the adoption of 
CpC accounting pronouncements for the preparation of financial statements, 
under an accounting policy of using the same criteria used for the preparation 
of prior financial statements, and then discontinuing the amortization.

Consequently, goodwill started being tested for impairment on an annual ba-
sis. any identified impairment losses are recognized against goodwill and are 
not reversed. goodwill is stated at cost less amortization through december 
31, 2008, the date of transition into CpC accounting pronouncements. 

soFtWarEs

acquired software licenses are capitalized based at the costs incurred to 
acquire the software and prepare them for use. these costs are amortized 
over their estimated useful life of software (three to five years).
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(F) iMpairMEnt

FinanCial assEts (inCluDing rECEivablEs)

financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss are as-
sessed at each reporting date for objective evidence of impairment loss. 

an objective evidence that financial assets have lost value includes:

■  debtor’s default or delays;

■  restructuring of an amount owed to the Company at conditions that the 
Company would not consider as normal conditions;

■  indications that the debtor or issuer will face bankruptcy;

■  negative changes in payment situation of debtors or issuers;

■  the disappearance of an active market for an instrument; and

■  observable data indicating that expected cash flow measurement of a 
group of financial assets decreased.

finanCial assets measured at amortized Cost

the Company considers as evidence of impairment of assets measured by 
amortized cost both individually and on an aggregate basis. all individually 
significant receivables are assessed for impairment. those identified as 
non-impaired on an individual basis are collectively assessed for any impair-
ment loss not yet identified. assets that are not individually significant are 
assessed on an aggregate basis in relation to impairment by grouping the 
assets with similar risk characteristics.

When assessing impairment on an aggregate basis the Company makes use 
of historical trends of the recovery term and the amounts of losses incurred, 
adjusted to reflect the management’s judgment if the current economic and 
credit conditions are such that the actual losses will probably be higher or 
lower than those suggested by historical trends.

an impairment is calculated as the difference between the asset’s book value 
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the finan-
cial asset’s original effective interest rate. the losses are recognized in in-
come and reflected in an account for allowance for losses. When the Compa-
ny considers that it is not possible to reasonably expect recovery, amounts 
are written-off. When a subsequent event causes the amount of the impair-
ment loss to decrease, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
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non-finanCial assets

the book values of the Company’s non-financial assets, except for invento-
ries and deferred income and social contribution tax assets, are reviewed at 
each balance sheet date for indication of impairment. if such indication ex-
ists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. in case of goodwill, recov-
erable value is tested on an annual basis.

for tests of reduction in recoverable value, assets are grouped into the 
smallest identifiable group of assets that can generate cash inflows by con-
tinuous use that are largely independent of cash flows from other assets, or 
Cash generating units (Cgu). goodwill in a business combination is allocat-
ed to cash generating units or groups of cash generating units that are ex-
pected to benefit combination synergy.

recoverable value or Cgu of an asset is the higher of value in use and fair 
value less selling costs. value in use is based on estimated future cash 
flows discounted to present value using a discount rate before taxes that 
reflects current market evaluations of times value of money and the specific 
risks of the assets or Cgu.

an impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset or 
its Cgu exceeds its recoverable value.

impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. recognized losses refer-
ring to Cgus are initially allocated to reduce any goodwill allocated to that 
Cgu (or Cgu group) and then to reduce the book value of other assets of 
that Cgu (or Cgu group) on a pro rata basis.

an impairment loss related to goodwill is not reversed. regarding other assets, 
impairment losses are reversed only with the condition that the book value of 
the asset does not exceed the book value that would have been calculated, 
net of depreciation or amortization, if the value loss had not been recognized.

(g) othEr CurrEnt assEts

stated at their cost or realization value, including, when applicable, income 
earned up to the balance sheet date.

(h) provisions

a provision is set up when the Company has a legal or constructive obliga-
tion as a result of a past event, which can be reliably estimated, and it is 
probable that an outflow of funds will be required to settle the obligation.

(i) othEr CurrEnt liabilitiEs

stated at the known amounts or estimated, plus, when applicable, the cor-
responding charges and monetary and exchange variations incurred up to 
the balance sheet date.
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(J) EMploYEE bEnEFits

short-tErM bEnEFits

obligations for short-term employee benefits are measured on a non-dis-
counted basis and incurred as expenses as the related service is rendered.

the liability is recognized at the amount expected to be paid under the cash 
bonus plans or short-term profit sharing if the Company has a legal or con-
structive obligation to pay this amount as a result of service rendered by the 
employee, and the obligation can be reliably estimated. 

post-EMploYMEnt bEnEFit — hEalth CarE plans

the Company provides certain post-employment healthcare benefits to its 
employees. those benefits are funded on a cash basis. benefits granted 
through defined-benefit plans are funded separately for each plan, under 
the projected unit credit method. 

measurements, including actuarial gains and losses, are immediately recog-
nized in the balance sheet and the corresponding debits and credits are 
charged to retained earnings, under comprehensive income, in the same 
period they occur. measurements are not reclassified to income in subse-
quent periods. 

net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the asset or liability 
of the net defined benefit. the Company recognizes the following variations in 
the liability for the defined benefit in the statement of operations (by function):

■  service costs, comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains 
and losses from significant reductions in work time estimates and unusual 
settlements;

■  net interest expense or income,

post-employment healthcare benefit plan costs are determined by means of 
actuarial evaluation methods. the actuarial evaluation requires the use of as-
sumptions of discount rates, expected asset return rates, future salary increas-
es and mortality rates. defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes 
in those assumptions. all assumptions are reviewed on the base dates. 

to determine adequate discount rates, management takes into account the 
interest rates of debentures issued by highly solvent corporations and na-
tional treasury bills for periods corresponding to defined benefit plan obliga-
tion periods. the quality of securities is reviewed and those having an exces-
sive credit spread are excluded from those to be used in identifying the 
interest rate. 

the mortality rate is based on mortality tables available in brazil.
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(K) Distribution oF DiviDEnDs

payment of dividends and interest on capital to partners is recognized as a lia-
bility in the Company’s financial statements when established in shareholders’ 
meetings, since no payments of mandatory minimum dividends are foreseen.

the value of interest on capital for tax purposes is recorded as a financial 
expense, and for purposes of presentation in the financial statements it is 
treated as profit distribution, charged against retained earnings, in quotahol-
ders’ equity. the tax benefit of interest on own capital is recognized in the 
statement of operations.

(l) inCoME tax anD soCial Contribution

the income and social contribution taxes, both current and deferred, are 
calculated based on the rates of 15% plus a surcharge of 10% on taxable 
income in excess of r$ 240 (annual base for the year) for income tax and 
9% on taxable income for social contribution on net income, and consider 
the offsetting of tax loss carryforward and negative basis of social contribu-
tion limited to 30% of the taxable.

income tax and social contribution expense comprises both current and de-
ferred taxes. Current taxes and deferred taxes are recognized in income 
unless they are related to items directly recognized in Quotaholders’ equity.

CurrEnt tax

Current taxes are the expected taxes payable on the taxable income for the 
year, at tax rates enacted or substantively enacted on the date of presenta-
tion of the financial statements, and any adjustments to taxes payable in 
relation to prior years.

DEFErrED tax

deferred taxes are recognized in relation to the temporary differences be-
tween the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for accounting purpos-
es and the related amounts used for taxation purposes. deferred taxes are 
measured at tax rates expected to be applied to temporary differences 
when they are reversed, based on laws enacted or substantively decreed up 
to the reporting date of the financial statements.

tax ExposurEs

to determine current income tax, the Company takes into consideration the 
impact of uncertainties on positions taken on taxes and if the additional in-
come tax and interest payment has to be made. the Company believes that 
the provision for income tax in liabilities is adequate for all outstanding tax 
periods, based on its evaluation of several factors, including interpretations of 
tax laws and past experience. this evaluation is based on estimates and as-
sumptions that may involve several judgments on future events. new informa-
tion may be provided, making the Company change its judgment on the exist-
ing provision adequacy; such changes will impact income tax expenses for the 
year in which they are made.
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deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legal enforce-
able right to set off current tax assets and liabilities, and the latter relate to 
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity.

a deferred income tax and social contribution asset is recognized for un-
used tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the 
extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against 
which the unused tax losses and credits can be utilized.

deferred income and social contribution tax assets are reviewed at each 
reporting date and reduced when their realization is no longer probable.

(M) nEW stanDarDs anD intErprEtations not YEt aDoptED

several new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations will 
become effective for the years started after january 1, 2016. the Company 
did not adopt these changes for preparation of these financial statements. 
the Company does not plan to adopt these standards in advance.

iFrs 9 FinanCial instruMEnts 

ifrs 9, published in july 2014, replaces guidelines of ias 39 financial in-
struments: recognition and measurement (financial instruments: recogni-
tion and measurement). ifrs 9 includes revised guidance on the classifica-
tion and measurement of financial instruments, a new expected credit loss 
model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and the hedge ac-
counting requirements. the standard maintains the existing guidance on the 
recognition and derecognition of financial instruments of ias 39. ifrs 9 is 
effective for years beginning on or after january 1, 2018. the Company is 
evaluating the effects that the ifrs 9 will have on financial statements and 
its disclosures.

iFrs 15 — inCoME FroM ContraCts With CliEnts

the ifrs 15 requires an entity to recognize the amount of income reflecting 
the consideration that it expects to receive in exchange for control of these 
goods or services. the new standard will replace most of the detailed guid-
ance on income recognition that currently exists in ifrs when it is adopted. 
the new standard is applicable beginning on or after january 1, 2018. the 
standard may be adopted retrospectively, adopting a cumulative effects ap-
proach. the Company is evaluating the effects ifrs 15 will have on its finan-
cial statements and disclosures.

in addition, the following new standards or amendments to existing stan-
dards are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial 
statements.

■  Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortization 
(amendments to CpC 27 / ias 16 and CpC 04 / ias 38)

■  annual improvements to ifrss 2012-2014 — several standards.
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the accounting pronouncements Committee has not yet issued any ac-
counting pronouncement or amendments in current pronouncements corre-
sponding to all new ifrss. therefore, early adoption of these ifrs’s is not 
permitted for entities that disclose their financial statements in accordance 
with accounting practices adopted in brazil.

(n) DEtErMination oF Fair valuE

a number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures requires 
the determination of fair value, for both financial and non-financial assets 
and liabilities. fair values have been determined for measurement and/or 
disclosure purposes. When applicable, additional information about the as-
sumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific 
to that asset or liability.

4 cash and  
 cash equivalents

              2015  2014

    Cash          50  78 

    banks CheCking aCCount       9,502   118 

    banCo itaú s.a. — "autmais"        167  341

              9,719  537 

Cash and bank deposit balances include basically cash available and bank 
deposits available, respectively.

5 interest earning  
 bank deposits

              2015  2014

    banCo santander s.a. — (bank deposit CertifiCates) Cdb   50,019    14,036 

    banCo votorantim s.a. — Cdb      7,888    7,075 

    banCo safra        1,063    1,284

    banCo bradesCo s.a. — repurChase and resale agreement — Cdb 76    2,807 

    banCo itaú s.a. — (bank deposit CertifiCates) Cdb    31,106   5,013

    banCo itaú s.a. — (bank deposit CertifiCates) Cdb    3,304   – 

              93,456  30,215 

highly liquid short-term interest earning bank deposits are promptly convert-
ible into a known sum of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change 
of value.

financial investments refer mostly to bank deposit Certificates and fixed-
rate funds earning 100% to 102.8% of the interbank deposit rate.  

revenues from interest on financial investments are considered in the state-
ment of cash flow as operating activity. Withdrawals from financial invest-
ments and their raisings are considered in statements of cash flows from 
investment activities.

the Company’s exposure to interest rate risks and a sensitivity analysis of fi-
nancial assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 25 — financial instruments.
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6 trade accounts  
 receivable  

              2015  2014

    ConstruCtion management agreements     14,039  38,686 

    fiXed-priCe ConstruCtion agreements     26,737  16,891 

              40,776  55,577 

    Current          38,348  46,100

    non-Current          2,428  9,477 

the balances of accounts receivable for performed and billed services, as of 
december 31, 2015 and 2014, by maturity periods, are as follows:

              2015  2014

    falling due         38,231  44,721

    overdue   up to 30 days      5  –

        31–60 days      –  147

        61–90 days      35  –

    billed serviCes        38,271  44,868

    serviCes to be billed (falling due)     2,505  10,709

              40,776  55,577

in 2015, the Company recorded no allowance for doubtful accounts. the 
balance of accounts receivable is composed as follows, by clients:

    CliEnt          2015  2014

    ge — Centro brasileiro de pesQuisas ltda.    –  9,414

    multiplan empreendimentos imobiliários s.a.    1,047  6,330

    jaguar e land rover brasil import. Com.ltda    25,917   12,270

    itaú unibanCo s.a.         198  9,413 

    Carvalho hosken hotelaria ltda      2,743  4,203

    ts-19 partiCipaÇões ltda.       –  4,095

    aeroporto internaCional Confins ConCessionaire   5,575  –

    other          5,296  9,852

              40,776  55,577 

management understands that the Company has a dispersed client base 
and that the concentration of receivables is due to the works in progress at 
year end.

7 current tax  
 assets

              2015  2014

    Csll reCoverable        7  7

    irpj reCoverable        –  662

    Withholding of reCoverable soCial seCurity  
    Charges on billings         5,577   9,271

              5,584   9,940
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8 deferred tax  
 assets

              2015  2014

    temporary additions in taXable inCome Computation 

     provision for ContingenCies     5,086   8,606 

     provision for guarantee of ConstruCtion Works  1,602  2,740 

     profit sharing       10,998  8,553 

     provision for possible bonus     44  –

     provision for profit sharing — long-term inCentive  1,388    –

     provision for labor ContingenCies — Clrv   21   –

     provision for Civil ContingenCies — Clrv    19   –

     employee benefits       1,731    1,623

     other aCCounts payable      124    99 

    temporary eXClusion in taXable inCome Computation   

     taX amortization of goodWill      (5,435)    (4,104) 

    total temporary additions, net       15,577    17,517 

    nominal rate  – %        34    34 

    DEFErrED inCoME anD soCial Contribution taxEs   5,296  5,956 

    in inCoME For thE YEar (notE 22)      (660)  (5,288) 

CoMposition oF DEFErrED taxEs

the deferred income and social contribution taxes are recognized to reflect 
future tax effects attributable to temporary differences between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their book values on the accrual basis.

DEFErrED tax assEts not rECognizED

deferred tax assets were not recognized in relation to the following items:

              2015  2014

    aCCumulated losses and the negative soCial  
    Contribution basis        5,069  15,031

              5,069  5,031
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9 property, plant  
 and equipment

                  2015  2014

    maChinery and eQuipment     10    104    (76)    30    36 

    furniture and fiXtures     10    2,608    (2,169)    439    635 

    it eQuipment      20    3,846    (3,416)    430    829 

    vehiCles       20    75    (17)    58    35 

    leasehold improvements third parties   10    1,240    (901)    339    412 

                 7,873    (6,579)    1,294    1,947 

Changes in property, plant and equipment for the years ended december 31, 
2015 and 2014:

                Cost DEprECiation  nEt

    january 1, 2013          6,682  (3,465)   3,217

     additions            462   –   462

     depreCiation         –    (882)    (882)

 

    deCember 31, 2013          7,144   (4,347)  2,797

     additions           660    –   660

     depreCiation          –   (1,510)     (1,510)

 

    deCember 31, 2014          7,804    (5,857)   1,947

     additions           162    –   162

     Write-offs            (93)   45   (48)

     depreCiation         –    (767)   (767) 

 

    DECEMbEr 31, 2015          7,873    (6,579)   1,294 

10 intangible  
 assets

                  2015  2014

    goodWill in shares aCQuisitions (*)       8,873    (2,218)    6,655    6,655 

    softWare       20    10,514    (7,357)    3,157    4,529

              19,387  (9,575)   9,812   11,184

(*) on september 9, 2007, former parent Company raCiCorp aCQuired 10% of the Company’s 
share Quotas, WhiCh Were previously held by individual partners. that transaCtion ge-
nerated goodWill of r$ 8,873, and its eConomiC fundamental is the eXpeCtation of future 
profitability. in the year beginning january 1, 2009, the systematiC goodWill amortization 
based on eXpeCted future profitability Was disContinued. from then on, only annual re-
Coverability tests have been performed. on november 30, 2011, raCiCorp split off the en-
tire goodWill it had reCorded and merged it into the Company, based on the appraisal 
report issued by independent eXperts, at book value.

annual DEprECiation/
aMortization ratE  – %

annual DEprECiation/
aMortization ratE  – %

nEt

nEt

nEt

nEt

Cost

Cost

aCCuMulatED 
aMortization

aCCuMulatED 
DEprECiation
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for the appraisals and the impairment test, cash flows were estimated for 
the period from 2016 to 2020, disregarding any inflation that may occur in 
the period. the average discount rate applied to the cash flow was 12%. 

the changes in intangible assets for the years ended december 31, 2015 
and 2014 are as follow:

                Cost aMortization nEt

    JanuarY 1, 2013          16,738   (4,548)   12,190

     additions          1,639  –   1,639

     amortization         –   (1,620)   (1,620)

    DECEMbEr 31, 2013          18,377   (6,168)   12,209

     additions for the year        491   –    491 

     amortization          –   (1,516)    (1,516) 

    DECEMbEr 31, 2014          18,868   (7,684)   11,184

     additions for the year        519   –   519

     amortization         –    (1,891)   (1,891)

    DECEMbEr 31, 2015          19,387   (9,575)   9,812

11 financings
              2015  2014

    subCredit “a”        335    1,336 

    subCredit “b”        187    509 

    subCredit “C”        140    557 

    subCredit “f”        79    313 

       

    national banK For  soCial  
    anD EConoMiC DEvElopMEnt — bnDEs     741    2,715 

       

    Current         741    2,039

    non-Current        –    676 

 

outstanding balances, by maturity year, are as follows:

              2015  2014

    2015          –    2,039 

    2016          741    676 

               741    2,715 

(a) on march 24, 2011, the Company entered into a loan agreement with the 
brazilian development bank (bndes) through financial agent banco itaú bba 
s.a., to allow software development and customization and an office expansion. 

that debt is subject to average interest rate of 4.45% per year plus the long-
term interest rate. the payment schedule establishes the repayment of the 
principal plus monetary restatement in 42 monthly installments after an 
18-month grace period. on december 31, 2015, 38 installments had already 
been settled, and 4 installments to be settled. the agreement has clauses on 
compliance with certain financial and non-financial covenants, among which 
we point out:

■  invest funds received solely in the project execution.

■  informing the creditor of any event likely to change the project, describing 
the measures adopted.
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■  absence of mergers, takeover, spin-offs and other corporate reorganiza-
tion procedures without the creditor’s prior consent.

■  forwarding to the creditor any changes in by-laws, and minutes of the an-
nual general meetings as well as those of the board of directors’ meetings.

■  maintenance of insurance of goods pledged as surety.

■  no assignment or transfer of contractual rights or obligations, or sale or 
disposal of the financed asset without the creditor’s approval.

■  keeping up with any payments regarding liabilities of tax or labor nature. 

■  no rentals, leasing or transfers of the asset acquired under the project 
funded.

the Company has usual market guarantees, restrictions and covenants relat-
ed to their loans. all restrictive clauses referring to loans are being fully com-
plied with by the Company and its subsidiaries as of december 31, 2015.

12 labor and social security  
 obligations

              2015  2014

    profit sharing        10,998    8,553 

    soCial seCurity Contributions      185    186 

    Contribution to the severanCe indemnity     459    449 

    vaCations and Corresponding Charges      6,396    6,558 

    long-term remuneration inCentive plan     1,388   –

    other payroll Charges payable      64    57 

              19,490    15,803 

    Current         18,102   15,803

    non-Current        1,388   –

in 2015, the profit sharing totaled r$ 10,998 (r$ 8,553 in 2014) calculated 
based on the Company’s profit sharing policy including all Company’s em-
ployees, and accounted for as “administrative and commercial expenses”.

13 tax liabilities
              2015  2014

    Contribution for soCial seCurity funding — Cofins payable  1,135    887 

    soCial integration program (pis) payable    243    192 

    serviCe taX (iss) payable       380    93 

    Withholding inCome taX (irrf) payable     1,378    401

    other taXes payable       1,254    940 

               4,390    2,513 
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14 pledges  
 and retentions

as of december 31, 2015, the balance is r$ 7,813 (r$ 6,942 in 2014) and 
refers to supply contracts, the Company provides the retention of values to 
be released after the conclusion of the respective construction works as a 
guarantee that suppliers will comply with the after construction work com-
mitments in relation to the Company and the Company in relation to the cli-
ents. such pledge is formed by means of the adoption of a percentage on 
the value of labor described in the contract with the supplier.

15 advances  
 from clients

              2015  2014

    the value of the installment reCeived is greater  
    than the reCognized  inCome from the progress of Work  53,183    13,040 

    installment reCeived at the beginning of  
    ContraCtual effeCtiveness      3,192    19,505 

    advanCes reCeived for Costs to be inCurred    12,128    1,240 

               68,503    33,785 

16 provisions for guarantees  
 of construction works

Changes in the provision bay be shown as follow:

              2015  2014

    at the beginning of the year      2,740    2,000 

     supplement of provision      –    740 

     reversal of provision      (1,138)   –

    at the end of the year       1,602    2,740 

expenses incurred during the year are directly recorded under “income (loss) 
for the year”, and the provision is adjusted at the end of each year in order to 
reflect the estimated expenditures with repairs during the remaining guaran-
tee period.

17 provisions for  
 contingencies

              2015  2014

    labor ContingenCies       1,230    1,512 

    Civil liability ContingenCies      259    395 

    sundry ContingenCies       3,597    6,699 

               5,086    8,606  

for all issues that are being questioned, a provision is formed in an amount 
considered sufficient to cover probable losses, based on the evaluation of 
external legal advisors.
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the provision is formed for proceedings in which the risk assessment, as 
confirmed by the Company’s legal advisors, suggests a probable loss. 
Changes in provision for labor, civil and tax risks and other are as follow:

              2015  2014

    at the beginning of the year      8,606    7,370 

     supplement of provisions      –    1,236 

     reversal of provisions      (3,520)   –

        at the end of the year       5,086   8,606 

ContingEnt liabilitiEs For WhiCh a provision  
has not bEEn rECorDED anD EvaluatED as possiblE loss

the Company is party to labor, civil tax lawsuits, involving loss risks classi-
fied as possible by management, based on the evaluation of its legal advi-
sors. no provision was recorded as formation and estimate below:

              2015  2014

    labor            29,485   6,572 

    Civil            6,804   3,998 

    taX            1,668   1,000

              37,957    11,570  

the company made a judicial deposit in an amount of r$ 1,827 as of june 23, 
2008, which suspended the enforceability of tax credit related to an adminis-
trative procedure charging an alleged pis credit regarding triggering events 
occurred between january 1997 and september 1998. 

18 quotaholders’  
 equity

a. Capital

the capital is divided into 21,615,393 quotas at r$ 1.00 each. the breakdown 
of capital can be shown as follows:

    raCional partiCipaÇões ltda.                21,615,390            21,615,390

    individuals — managing partners       3   3

                          21,615,393           21,615,393

b. DiviDEnDs anD intErEst on oWn Capital

              2015  2014

    partners’ meeting as of february 24, 2014     –   21,851 

    partners’ meeting as of marCh 26, 2014      –   26

    partners’ meeting as of august 11, 2015     216   –

    partners’ meeting as of august 28, 2015      19,250   – 

    DiviDEnDs FroM rEtainED Earnings     19,466   21,877

aMount  
in rEaisquotaspartnEr
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the distribution of dividends was made for the following partners:

    partnEr            2015   2014

    raCional partiCipaÇões ltda.         19,250    20,000

    individuals — managing partners         216    1,877

    paYMEnt oF DiviDEnDs          19,466    21,877

             

                  2015   2014

    dividends paid           19,466    21,877

                  19,466   21,877

C. rEtainED Earnings

the allocation of the net income for the year and accumulated balance was 
authorized in a Quotaholders’ meeting.

19 benefits granted  
 to employees

a. plano DE bEnEFíCios pós-EMprEgo

the Company records a provision for post-employment benefits related to a 
healthcare plan. the net liabilities recorded on december 31, 2015 is of 
r$ 1,731, recorded in non-current liabilities, in 2014 was r$ 1,622.

amounts related to such benefits were determined in an evaluation con-
ducted by an independent actuary and are recognized in financial state-
ments in accordance with CpC 33.

b. balanCE oF post-EMploYMEnt bEnEFit obligations  
CalCulatED bY inDEpEnDEnt aCtuariEs ChangED as FolloWs

the updating of liabilities was recorded in the income (loss) for the year. the 
net expense incurred with the healthcare plan granted to employees for 
2014, in accordance with actuarial calculations performed by independent 
actuaries, includes the following components:

    provision rEstatEMEnts    

     direCtly in the inCome    255    224

     Cost in the period regarding  
     the restatement of provisions   255    224

    Cost of the defined benefit    

     Cost of Current serviCe    59    51

     Cost of interest     195    172

     aCtuarial losses/ aCtuarial (gains)   (146)    1,399

    net Cost in the period regarding  
    the net eXpenses With plan    1,731     1,622

hEalthCarE plan  
grantED in 2014

hEalthCarE plan 
grantED in 2015
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C. aCtuarial assuMptions

the main assumptions adopted in the calculation were as follows:

    DEsCription         CurrEnt assuMption

    FinanCial

     CapaCity faCtor of benefits       100 %

     eXpeCted inflation rate — long-term      5.50 %

     aCtuarial disCount nominal rate       13.02%

     mediCal Costs groWth nominal rate — mediCal inflation   3.00%

     mediCal Costs aCtual groWth rate per age — aging faCtor   3.00%

     likelihood of post-retirement inClusion in mediCal plan     30.00%

    bioMEtriC    

     general mortality table            at-2000 m/f        at-2000 m/f

     mortality table of individuals With  
     permanent disability      n/a  n/a

     table of neW disability benefit vested    n/a  n/a

     turnover table — (end of employment relationship)  note 1  note 1

     entry into retirement      note 2  note 2

note 1 — the turnover table adopted refleCts rate of: 30% (length of serviCe + 1) applied to 
the Company’s demographiC profile.
note 2 — the entry into retirement is 55 years for both genders plus 10 years in the Company.

20 net operating  
 income

              2015  2014

    inCoME FroM sErviCEs rEnDErED      

     ConstruCtion Work and miXed-purpose ContraCts  222,933    53,978

     ConstruCtion management agreements    131,929    231,042

              354,862  285,020

      DEDuCtions FroM gross inCoME      

     (–) serviCe taXes       (29,467)    (22,641) 

    total nEt opErating inCoME      325,395    262,379

21 costs and expenses  
 by type

a. Cost oF sErviCEs rEnDErED

              2015  2014

    materials and serviCes       (148,777)    (90,101) 

    personnel (note 21 C.)       (59,786)    (73,874) 

    utilities and serviCes       (29,268)    (47,154) 

    oCCupation         (9,215)    (17,494) 

                           (247,046)              (228,623) 
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b. aDMinistrativE anD CoMMErCial ExpEnsEs

              2015  2014

    personnel (note 21 C.)       (37,290)   (18,393) 

    general eXpenses        (12,706)   (8,364) 

    oCCupation         (2,947)   (2,599) 

    reversal (provision) of ContingenCies     3,520   (1,236) 

    provision of post-employment benefit     (254)   (1,620)

    utilities and serviCes       (1,753)   (1,303) 

    taX eXpenses        (163)   (206) 

              (51,593)   (33,721) 

C. pErsonnEl ExpEnsEs

              2015  2014

    salaries         (48,378)    (51,592) 

    vaCation         (6,286)    (4,131) 

    13th salary         (4,220)    (4,177) 

    inss          (4,600)    (3,599) 

    fgts          (6,837)    (6,738) 

    profit sharing          (10,001)    (2,237) 

    food – pat         (4,451)    (4,906) 

    other personnel eXpenses      (12,303)    (14,887) 

               (97,076)    (92,267) 

22 income and  
 social contribution taxes

CurrEnt inCoME anD soCial Contribution taxEs  

reconciliation of irpj and Csll at the rates provided under the tax legisla-
tion, with the respective sums in the statement of income. in years ended 
december 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company presented negative calculation 
basis for irpj (corporate income tax) and Csll (social contribution on net 
income) determination.

              2015  2014

    inCome (loss) before inCome and soCial Contribution    34,963   (826)

    nominal rate – %        34   34 

    inCome taX and soCial Contribution at nominal rate   (12,101)  281

    taX loss CarryforWard and negative basis    3,387   –

    adjustments:      

    other          481   (5,569) 

       

    inCoME anD soCial Contribution taxEs For thE YEar   (8,233)    (5,288) 

    Current         (7,409)    – 

    deferred assets        (660)   (5,288) 

               (8,069)    (5,288) 
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23 net financial  
 income

              2015  2014

    inCome from interest earning bank deposits    8,163    3,201 

    asset interest        2,662    599 

    FinanCial inCoME        10,825    3,800 

    disCounts granted       (1,302)    (976) 

    liability interest        (651)    (602) 

    bank eXpenses        (507)    (93) 

    FinanCial ExpEnsEs         (2,460)    (1,671) 

    nEt FinanCial inCoME        8,365    2,129

24 related party  
 transactions

balanCEs 

the Company does not have balances payable or receivable with related par-
ties referring to years ended december 31, 2015 and 2014.

opErations

the Company leases the building where its headquarters operate, owned by 
the company racicorp Comércio e participações ltda., incurred as lease 
expenses amounting to r$ 1,505 (r$ 1,665 in 2014), recorded as “adminis-
trative and commercial expenses”.

ManagEMEnt rEMunEration

in the year ended december 31, 2015, an amount of r$ 2,624 (r$ 2,817 in 
2014) was paid to the Company’s managers as compensation presented as 
“personnel expenses” (note 21b.). moreover, the managers are also the com-
pany’s quotaholders, and the payment of dividends are described in note 18 b.

no sums were paid as: (a) post-employment benefits (pensions, other retire-
ment benefits, post-employment life insurance and medical care); (b) long-
term benefits (long service leave or other leaves, jubilee or other benefits per 
years of service, long-term disability benefits); (c) benefits on termination of 
employment contract; (d) share-based compensation.
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25 financial  
 instruments

ovErviEW 

the Company is exposed to the following risks:

■  Credit risk;

■  liquidity risk, and

■  operational risk.

this note presents information on the Company’s exposure to each of the 
risks above, the Company’s objectives, measurement policies, and the Com-
pany’s risk and capital management proceedings.

risK ManagEMEnt struCturE

the Company’s management is responsible for the definition and follow-up of 
the Company’s risk management policies and managers of each area regular-
ly report to the Company on their activities.

the Company’s risk management policies were established to identify and 
analyze the risks that the Company is exposed, to define appropriate limits 
and controls of risks, and to monitor risks and adherence to the limits. risk 
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market 
conditions and in the activities of the Company. the Company seeks to devel-
op, upon its training and management standards and procedures, a discipline 
and control environment in which all employees are aware of their assign-
ments and obligations.

CrEDit risK

Credit risk is the risk of the Company incurring losses due to a client or fi-
nancial instrument counterparty, resulting from failure in complying with 
contract obligations. risk is mainly due to trade accounts receivable, and of 
interest earning bank deposits.

management seeks to minimize the credit risks tied to financial institutions, 
by diversifying its operations with top line institutions.

financial assets’ book values represent maximum exposure to credit risk, as 
follows:

            notE  2015  2014

    Cash and Cash eQuivalents      4  9,719   537

    interest earning bank deposits    5  93,456   30,215

    trade aCCounts reCeivable    6  40,776   55,577

    other Credits reCeivable        2,816   2,871

               146,767  89,200
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liquiDitY risK

liquidity risk is the risk of the Company encountering difficulties in perform-
ing the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled with 
cash payments or with another financial asset.  the Company’s approach in 
liquidity management is to guarantee, as much as possible, that it always has 
sufficient liquidity to perform its obligations upon maturity, under normal and 
stress conditions, without causing unacceptable losses or with a risk of sully-
ing the Company’s reputation.

management believes that the Company does not have high liquidity risk, 
considering its capital structure with a low participation of debt maintained 
with third parties.

additionally, they mechanisms are periodically analyzed aiming to raise funds 
to reverse positions that could affect the liquidity of the Company.

the table below shows the risks of liquidity by maturity and reflects the finan-
cial flow of the Company on december 31, 2015:

             total           até 1 ano                > 1 YEar

    assEts

    Cash and Cash eQuivalents    9,719   9,719   –

    interest earning bank deposits    93,456   93,456   –

    trade aCCounts reCeivable    40,776   38,348   2,428

    other Credits reCeivableQ    2,816   2,816   –

            146,767   144,339   2,428

    liabilitiEs 

    finanCings       741   741   –

    suppliers       11,051   11,051   –

    pledges and retentions     7,813   4,200   3,613

    other aCCounts payable     723  723   –

             20,328   16,715   3,613

We do not expect that cash flows, including in the Company’s maturity analy-
sis, may occur significantly earlier or in significantly different amounts.

intErEst ratE risK

the Company is exposed to the risks and fluctuations of interest rates in its 
investments. 

on the date of the Company’s interim financial statements, the profile of fi-
nancial instruments remunerated by Company’s interest was:

                    booK valuE

    variablE ratE instruMEnts      2015  2014

    finanCial assets 

     interest earning bank deposits     93,456    30,215

    finanCial liabilities 

     loans and finanCing      741    2,715

              94,197    32,930
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the Company performed sensitivity analysis of main risks to which its finan-
cial instruments are exposed. for the sensitivity analysis of interest rate 
variations, management adopted for the probable scenario the same rates 
used on balance sheet date. scenarios ii and iii were estimated with addi-
tional valuation of rates of 25% and 50% respectively, while scenarios iv 
and v have estimated additional devaluation of 25% and 50%, respectively, 
for the probable scenario.

the table below shows possible impacts on results for each of the scenarios:

                           sCEnarios

    1. FinanCial assEts 

    interest earning  
    bank deposits  93.456 Cdi variation  10.81%  10,102 12,629 15,153 7,578 5,051

    2. FinanCial liabilitiEs 

    finanCings     741  tjlp variation  5.00%  (37) (46) (56) (27) (18)

    1 + 2              10,965 12,583 15,097 7,551 5,033

opErating risK

operating risk is the risk of direct or indirect losses arising from different 
causes related to the Company’s processes, personnel, technology and infra-
structure and external factors, except credit and liquidity risks, as those aris-
ing from legal and regulatory requirements and from generally accepted cor-
porate behavior standards.

the Company’s goal is to manage the operational risk to avoid the occurrence 
of financial losses and damage to its reputation, and to pursue cost effective-
ness and avoid control procedures that restrict initiative and creativeness.

top management of each business unit is responsible for developing and 
implementing controls to address operating risks. 

existence of integrated and accurate information systems support manage-
ment on mitigation of operating risks with the implementation of standardized 
and automated processes.

Capital ManagEMEnt

the Company’s capital management is conducted so as to balance own and 
third parties’ fund sources, balancing the return to quotaholders and the risk 
to quotaholders and creditors.

probablErisKExposurEassEt ExposurE

EFFECtivE  
intErEst ratE  

at 2015
v

– 50%
iv

– 25%
ii

25%
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ClassiFiCation oF FinanCial instruMEnts

the classification of financial instruments is presented in the table below, 
and there are no financial instruments classified in other categories besides 
those informed:

    assEts 

    Cash and Cash eQuivalents   4   –   9,719  –   9,719

    interest earning bank deposits   5   93,456   –   –  93,456

    trade aCCounts reCeivable   6   –  40,776  –   40,776

    other Credits reCeivableQ       –   2,816   –   2,816

                93,456   53,311   –   146,767

    liabilitiEs   

    finanCings      11   –   –   741   741

    suppliers            –   –   11,051   11,051

    pledges and retentions    14   –   –   7,813   7,813

    other aCCounts payable        –   –   723   723

                –    –   20,328   20,328

    assEts 

    Cash and Cash eQuivalents   4   –   537   –   537

    interest earning bank deposits   5   30,215   –   –   30,215

    trade aCCounts reCeivable   6   –   55,577   –   55,577

    other Credits reCeivable        –   2,871   –   2,871

                30,215  58,985   –   89,200

    liabilitiEs   

    finanCings       11   –   –   2,715   2,715

    suppliers           –   –  4,413   4,413

    pledges and retentions    14   –   –   6,942   6,942

    other aCCounts payable        –   –  293   293

                –    –     14,363   14,363

a. Fair valuE

a.1. DErivativE FinanCial instruMEnts

the Company does not perform operations with derivative financial instru-
ments in order to mitigate or eliminate risks to its operation. 

a.2. “non-DErivativE” FinanCial instruMEnts

management considers that fair value equals book value for all operations, as 
for this operations the book value reflects the settlement value on that date, 
due to the short-term of such operations. thus, the carrying amounts record-
ed in the balance sheet relating to the balances of interest earning bank de-
posits, accounts receivable, other receivables, such as accounts payable and 
other debts do not differ from their fair values at december 31, 2014. 

as of december 31, 2014, the Company had no kinds of loans and/or financing.

total at 
DECEMbEr 31, 

2015

total at 
DECEMbEr 31, 

2014

liabilitiEs at 
aMortizED 

Cost

liabilitiEs at 
aMortizED 

Cost

loans anD 
rECEivablEs

loans anD 
rECEivablEs

Fair valuE 
through proFit  

or loss
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fair value hierarChy

the different levels were defined as follows:

■  level 1 — prices quoted (not adjusted) in active markets for identical as-
sets and liabilities;

■  level 2 — inputs, except for quoted prices, included in level 1 which are 
observable for assets or liabilities, directly (prices) or indirectly (derived from 
prices), and

■  level 3 — assumptions, for assets or liabilities, which are not based on 
observable market data (non-observable inputs);

determination of fair value

■  level 2 — interest earning bank deposits were recorded on a basis of the 
redemption value on that date, representing the best fair value.

in levels 1 and 3, the company had no qualifying transactions.
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attachment
 supplementary information for the  
 finanCial statements as of deCember 31, 2015
 (in thousands of reais)

 statEMEnt oF thE total suM oF ConstruCtion ContraCts in EFFECt 
unDEr thE CoMpanY’s rEsponsibilitY 

              2015  2014

    ConstruCtion WorK anD MixED-purposE ContraCts 

    reCognized revenues       222,933   53,978

    material and serviCes provided by Clients    97,420   18,594

    total oF Civil WorKs unDEr spECial-orDEr  
    anD MixED ContraCts       320,353   72,572

       

    ConstruCtion ManagEMEnt agrEEMEnts  

    reCognized revenues       131,929   231,042

    ConstruCtion Costs paid direCtly by Clients    360,396   546,225

    total ConstruCtion WorKs unDEr  
    ManagEMEnt ContraCts       492,325   777,267

    total ContraCtual suM oF rECognizED rEvEnuEs   812,678   849,839

the presentation of the data is considered relevant by the Company, since 
most of the values for material and services has been hired directly by the 
owners of the works / clients and does not represent an income recognized 
by the Company around the level of operation performed. therefore, the 
Company submits a statement of value of services provided as an indicator 
of the total volume of construction works undertaken under its financial, 
technical and administration responsibility.

    neWton simões filho
    Ceo
    
    joÃo josé sChaeffer de melo
    strategiC planning and finanCe direCtor
    
    franCisCo aurélio martins
    aCCountant CrC 1sp165357/o-0
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